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Financial Highlights

BE-_Z— \F+_A=1+—RHILFENLEES Turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$2,374 million,
785 ¥ 2,374,000,000 7T + B & FF A9 7 1 2,218,000,000 7T increased by 7% compared to HK$2,218 million for the last year.
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Hop Hing owns the rights to operate
QSR chains, including Yoshinoya, Dairy
Queen, Uncle Fong and self-developed
brands Chatting and “ £ Z F " in the
northern part in the PRC, authorized
operating areas spanning across Beijing
and Tianjin municipalities, Hebei,
Liaoning, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Henan,
Shanxi and Shaanxi Provinces, and the
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in
the PRC.
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SHRIEH
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83X Yoshinoya:

AERN A WELL-KNOWN
ER AR A RICE BOWL BRAND
EEBA with over
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In 2018, the Group recorded a 7% growth in sales, with total turnover
exceeding HK$2.3 billion. However, due to additional promotional offers to
maintain our competitiveness, the profit of the Group had been adversely
affected and the profit of HK$122.6 million for 2018 represented a decrease
of 26.7% when compared to that for 2017.

During the year 2018, the overall Chinese economy faced various
challenges, including the Sino-US trade friction, the de-leveraging of the
financial systems in the PRC and the expectation of a slowdown in
economic activities in China. The gross domestic product of the PRC in
2018 recorded a slower growth rate than that of the previous year.

In the year under review, the catering industry faced fierce competition. A
major factor was equity funds collaborated with internet platform players
to enter the catering market. There were an influx of new style catering
brands and the emergence of “New Retail” allowing the crossover of
different market segments. Major established players countered with
aggressive marketing strategies, including price-cutting tactics. For the
period, the Group increased delivery sales of Yoshinoya and Dairy Queen
products by 25% and 87% respectively. However, the profitability of the
delivery business was adversely impacted by increased charges for orders
routed through the few major web delivery platform players.
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The Group is committed to deliver high quality food and ensuring food
safety. Management is entrusted to enhance our brand and product image.
Our incentive schemes for operational and managerial staff aligned our
interest and assured stability. We understand that to know the needs of our
customers is essential for enhancing customer loyalty in the current
internet economy. To this end, the Group has kept on refining its Customer
Relationship Management System; refining organizational structure,
systems, workflow and working habits. With the emergence of the concept
of “New Retail”, the Group has started selling different products, like frozen
and pre-packed foods, in the smart vending machines at its stores. This
could improve the operating efficiency at its stores and at the same time
enables the Group to test new concepts, including the “BFE-F" brand
which offers healthy and natural foods.

During 2018, the Group further strengthened cooperation with one of its
major franchisors by forming a joint venture with Yoshinoya group to
expand its exclusive franchise regions to Henan, Shanxi and Shaanxi
provinces. As a result, the customer base of the Group's franchise regions is
increased from around 240 million to around 400 million.

Looking ahead to 2019, the Group expects the aggressive price cutting
tactics amongst our key competitors and the continuing cost pressure
brought about by the third party delivery platforms are likely to continue.
Nonetheless, we are cautiously optimistic that our planned strategies will
be able to minimize the negative impact to our bottom line.

2018 fE ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 9



AREMZRERAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ETREHE

Chairman’s Statement

“E-NEFPREERREANRBEATE - F
BT ES@ERAEY  REERKCHEELE -
ENBBEMSEN  BREBEABENEERRR
B —T—NF BRADKETERENTER
B UTROmE]MIDBAE] ERAKERE
BVEAER - EEEANEE N T ZRE - Fitt
BASRAEBAERRENZERBENEHERENE
o B PR SE T A5 IR 5 QR ST I R B R o

RiE ERUERERHSEFTRC  BEEBEREL
BETHEBE-FNFHPTERRIXT - AR - K
ATERAER  BRESEBEHERKENE
ERIFBARLHE |

T

AlfERAP

B
“Z-hF=AZ-T/\H

10 2018 &3 ANNUAL REPORT

China’s economic policy is favorable for the domestic market in 2019. The
PRC Government will continue implementing tax reduction measures, as
well as policies promoting enterprises to transform and upgrade, stimulate
the market vitality, expand consumption and motivate investments. In
2019, we shall continue to steadfastly uphold our operating principles of
"Quality with Conscience” and “Value for Money” and continue to execute
the major strategies of our Group. Therefore, we are optimistic that the
Group could grasp suitable business opportunities in the catering market
in the future and maintain its leadership in the QSR chain market within the
PRC.

In closing, | would like to thank my fellow board members, the
management team and our staff for their hard work and unswerving
support during the past year. My gratitude also goes to our customers,
shareholders and business partners for their confidence in, and support to
the Group.

SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN
Chairman

Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, turnover of the Group’s business
increased by 7% from HK$2,218.3 million in 2017 to HK$2,374.0 million.
While the Group had expanded its store network by 43 new stores (net)
and increased the delivery business volume of Yoshinoya products and
Dairy Queen products by 25% and 87% respectively, the promotional offers
necessary in the competitive environment together with the increases in
charges of third party platforms and operating costs in the catering
industry have put pressure on the profitability of the Group. Earnings
before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation for the year was
HK$280.1 million, representing a decrease of 17.3% when compared to the
HK$338.7 million for the preceding year. Profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company for the year under review was HK$122.6 million,
representing a decrease of 26.7% or HK$44.8 million when compared to
HKS$167.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year were HK1.25 cents and

HK1.24 cents, respectively (2017: HK1.71 cents and HK1.69 cents,
respectively).

2018 &} ANNUAL REPORT 11
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On 29 June 2018, the Company made a final dividend payment of HK0.83
cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Directors
recommend payment of a final dividend of HK0.61 cent per share for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK0.83 cent per share). Subject to
approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
"AGM") of the Company, the final dividend will be distributed on or about
28 June 2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 20 June 2019.

The amount of final dividend recommended was calculated based on the
number of ordinary shares in issue at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements do not reflect
the final dividend payable.

12 2018 &3 ANNUAL REPORT
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Industry review

In 2018, the Chinese economy maintained stable development. As for the
catering industry, its total turnover exceeded RMB4 trillion for the first time,
indicating that it has transformed from a not very well founded and lower
end traditional industry into a key service and consumption industry in
China. Demand for takeaway and delivery services continued to rise, and
the market for delivery of drinks was expanding rapidly. However, with
online delivery platforms sprouting, integration of the industry also
hastened and major e-commerce platforms extending their reach into the
market for delivery of drinks also made competition more intense. New
Retail players with strong financial backing who can combine the
competitive edges of different market segments emerged and have
imposed new challenges to the traditional caterers. Catering operators
have to keep abreast of the needs of their customers, reform their
operations with innovation and come up with new products and services if
they are to remain competitive in the market dominated by the young
generations who are always keen to try new products. A business
environment like nothing before has emerged for the catering industry.

In 2018, while the catering enterprises continued enjoying increase in
revenue from their delivery business, they experienced huge pressure
brought by the costs of the delivery platforms. At the same time,
profitability of the catering industry was still subjected to the traditional
limitation of “four highs, one low" (high raw material, labor, rental and
utility costs and low margin). Together with the tightened regulations on
environmental protection, food safety and also social security and tax
expenses which all added to operating costs, the industry saw profits
further squeezed.

2018 3 ANNUAL REPORT 13
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Business Review

In response to the challenges, Hop Hing implemented three major
business strategies at the beginning of the year, including store upgrades,
brand expansion and human resources reform. Store upgrades included
enhancement of services, brand image, and products. Brand expansion
entailed development — innovation and evolution — and promotion of new
own brands. Human resources reform included: (1) reinforcement of the
employee incentive scheme and its committee structure to encourage
attainment of higher operational efficiency; (2) reform of organizational
structure (network-structure sharing system) for efficiency improvement;
(3) improvement of Supporting Office incentive measures by introducing
new performance appraisal methods that can inspire pursuit of career
development; (4) promotion of internal entrepreneurship by creating a
mechanism for collaboration among all departments, the aim of which is
to build a new business channel for new brands.

In the year under review, a new retail business model was adopted by the
Group to improve its customer satisfaction. By analyzing customer data
collected via the internet, the Group has developed and introduced a
“Solution for eating” concept which is an all-rounded service mode to
heighten customer satisfaction. The customer relationship management
("CRM") system was upgraded, with a cross-brand membership system
added to facilitate direct contact and interaction between the Group and
its customers, enable the Group to understand customers’ needs and
gauge their feedbacks to help development of strategies to improve
customer satisfaction and strengthen customer loyalty. By the end of 2018,
the Hop Hing membership had risen to more than five million.

To improve sales, in addition to introducing new product lines, Hop Hing
also enriched its existing product portfolio and optimized its sales
strategies. Tapping the potential of its large membership base, Hop Hing
adopted “fission” marketing to entice member referral. To meet the
demand for “natural” and “healthy” food, Hop Hing developed and
promoted salad products and stores under the “Ef 2" brand. In addition,
to capture the booming beverage market, Hop Hing introduced beverage
products that can satisfy the diverse tastes of customers using its own
techniques. Intelligent vending machines were placed in existing stores
operated by the Group to sell pre-packed food, frozen food and salad
products, and the results were all positive with increased store turnover
and increased productivity per unit area. In addition, the Group also
introduced self-ordering machines and other new devices, resulting in
higher operational efficiency and smaller increment of labor cost.
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Business Review (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s sales revenue in
Renminbi increased by 4.2% to RMB2,003.6 million (2017: RMB1,923.3
million), which was attributable to the additional sales brought by new
stores, as well as growth of the food delivery business. The Group's delivery
service has extended from delivery of only Yoshinoya products to including
certain Dairy Queen products in the fourth quarter of 2017. With its own
delivery team in Beijing, the Group is able to provide more efficient and
quality delivery services to customers. Affording consistently faster delivery
and more satisfactory delivery experience for customers, the delivery sales
percentage of Yoshinoya improved from 32% in 2017 to 39% in 2018.
Furthermore, the customer spending has increased after the launch of
Group's loyalty programme which offers customers bonus points on
purchases that can be used to redeem products later.

During the period under review, the Group's overall same-store sales
(denominated in Renminbi) increased by 0.8% (2017: 4.5%) and Yoshinoya
recorded a 1.0% same-store sales growth (2017: 4.6%). Sales of Dairy Queen
products were affected by adjustments made to certain Dairy Queen stores
to meet the new food preparation requirements imposed by local
authorities during the year. As a result, Dairy Queen experienced a decline
in same-store sales of 1.2% for the year (2017: growth of 4.2%).

EEHEEREIL
(AAR®EEH)
Percentage Increase in
Same Stores Sales
(in Renminbi)

—E-N\E —E—+F

2018 2017

BEg Overall 0.8% 4.5%
BEEEE By main brands

HFEX Yoshinoya 1.0% 46%

KEER Dairy Queen -1.2% 4.2%

2018 3 ANNUAL REPORT 15
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Business Review (Continued)
In 2018, in terms of revenue, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Metropolitan Region remained the largest market of the Group and sales

B WG AN R B $HE 4 EE A9 85.0% o revenue from Yoshinoya products accounted for approximately 85.0% of
the Group's total sales.
—E-NF —E—tF
2018 2017
ARBTT HEEHE% ARETT 1HHEETH%
RMB’000 % of sales RMB’000 % of sales
a RHEDMH By Region
bR — KFE _JAdtE Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Hem Metropolitan Region 1,485,118 74.1% 1,445,938 75.2%
ES5IAU Northern China® 518,499 25.9% 477,348 24.8%
b. REBEBHM By Main Brand
fﬁ% Yoshinoya 1,703,757 85.0% 1,650,462 85.8%
KEL Dairy Queen 210,802 10.5% 194,108 10.1%

v BIEREE ARG REIREME -

EOBEFE AEETESNEH - BAETHFRE
BEAEERRARIAGERT(EERRDERT
M ANMRA=ZEE N EHRKEM B R
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U Including Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Heilongjiang and Jilin.

During this review year, the Group formed a joint venture (the “JV") with
Yoshinoya Group, one of the major franchisors of the Group, to develop
the markets in three provinces, namely Henan, Shanxi and Shaanxi. As a
result, the geographical coverage of the Group’s Yoshinoya shop operation
has been expanded from “five provinces and two cities” to
and two cities”.

“eight provinces

In 2018, a net total of 43 new stores (2017: 46 net new stores), including 28
Yoshinoya stores (net), two of which were opened by the JV in Henan, 12
Dairy Queen stores (net) were opened. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
had 559 stores in operation.
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# ¥ B EE (4Z) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

¥IKEIEE(2) Business Review (Continued)
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FEHX Yoshinoya
bm—XK2ZE LA Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
He@ Metropolitan Region 230 218
e Liaoning 88 81
A Inner Mongolia 13 12
EEET Heilongjiang 21 16
EL Jilin 3 2
S Fg * Henan* 2 -
357 329
KEER Dairy Queen
s —KE LA Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
iR Metropolitan Region 124 17
EE Liaoning 25 24
ANE Inner Mongolia 8 7
BT Heilongjiang 12 1
L Jilin 4 2
173 161
EHAth Others
bm—XK=ZE LA Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Hez Metropolitan Region 27 25
e Liaoning 2 1
29 26
Bt Total 559 516
* HEARARIKE * Operated by the Joint Venture

BTBRRAR ﬁ:}ﬁﬁﬁ_i_}:ﬂ'ﬁ’\ﬁnﬁ% C RNEEEREA To deal with increasing food costs, the Group has adopted a procurement

T‘”ﬁﬁﬁi’:ﬁ’]ﬁi%ﬁ FISRRES - BIBBRAMISERE driven cost control strategy, commanding it to closely monitor market
HEAR |Efﬁittmﬂ’3¥ﬁ§uu RN EERES prices of raw materials and develop new value-for-money products and
m% DA% 422 %Uﬁuuﬁk$tgﬁmkﬁ'\ﬁw§lgﬂ hence optimize its product mix. The approach has been effective in

WERBBIEH RN LR BB ZFE S - A allowing the Group to control the increase in food cost and alleviate
- AREEMSDEERRESZENRIEE pressure on profitability. However, because of the price-driven promotion

&) BOINFEREINMEHES - Bt - EFEFE activities undertaken by the major market players, we increased our
THO3EEDE AT —LFM35uBE-ST promotional offers during the year. As a result, the net gross profit margin
—\F#63.2% ° was down by 0.3 percentage point from 63.5% in 2017 to 63.2% in 2018.
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# ¥ B EE (4Z) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

¥iEOEE (& Business Review (Continued)
—E-N\E —E—+F
2018 2017
FEF= Gross profit margin 63.2% 63.5%

REBLF B i 2B 8 & F & IEFRE R MR

BRB/NEHIAR S TENEROINEER - K&
BN T N\FZALREEKRAEHERD LS
PAMERS ST ARTE » SMASHEIEIN - I EE =TT
SN B W BRRIEIN - HFEARNEBEHE LD H
PRAERIE A = tboh - RIBEE RS =77 8 LS
FaRALRZEE  AEERBEEFEREES
REFREBMSIERREMRR - §ERSIBEINEK
%—ML\E’JEL\L REB TR RBEEER B & INXE K

ZTTINKER - TEEINKKALER o

The incentive scheme implemented by the Group in recent years and the
revision of the Group's store opening strategy to open stores with smaller
size to cater for more and more delivery businesses have enabled the
Group to maintain its labour and rental cost to sales percentage relatively
stable in 2018. The increase in delivery sales together with the
corresponding increase of delivery charges by the third party internet
delivery platforms have put pressure on the selling and distribution cost of
the Group during the year. In addition, to reduce the impact of the rising
cost of using third-party internet delivery platforms, the Group has made
exclusive special offers via its membership system and introduced exclusive
product line with the aim to attract customer traffic of its own delivery
platform. The Group has also optimized its delivery cost structure by
balancing the use of self-owned delivery team and third parties’ delivery

teams.
—E-N\EF —T—tF
2018 2017
BT GHEHE% BETIT HEERE®
HK$’000 % of sales HKS$'000 % of sales
ALK Labour costs 344,259 14.5% 315,511 14.2%
GiER AN Rental expenses 299,027 12.6% 278,893 12.6%
HrE N i Depreciation and amortization 92,209 3.9% 89,106 4.0%
HthE &M > Other operating expenses 388,874 16.4% 319,398 14.4%
SHE R HK 4R Total selling and distribution costs 1,124,369 47.4% 1,002,908 452%

REZBE—tFREAFEVIZERALRELAERS
LATER FI2E _ IR HE TR MBI AR R AR & B 4
ERAZHELR A F=FWEIEFEE
EJ%H&ZE?JMZK%@E%&?‘!%%%W%#J4%1 Z{E%’{E
BHASERNEBFAN EZEBERTFZZ -

It AREEE TR EF B 167,400,000 TTIR L 26.7%
ZERIEFE 2B 122,600,0007T ©
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The price adjustments towards the end of 2017 and at the beginning of
this year have allowed the Group to contain, to a certain extent, the
continuous increase in costs of certain food materials and operating costs
of the Group. The increase in the charges by third parties” internet delivery
platform together with the promotional offers made by the Group in the
fierce competitive environment had however adversely impacted the
Group's performance in the year under review. As a result, the profit of the
Group recorded a decrease of 26.7% from HK$167.4 million last year to
HK$122.6 million in the year under review.
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#7401 EE (#Z) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

EORE(E)

RARETRETERBRARAR -_E—-NF—AK
NREEM TS EPRA - BRI 7 B A
FasBENBHREZEFARETRBEER - &
EARERY ERANBERARABEAER -EF
EREBTYERZFEER YHEBENAFRE
BAGRRLEEREESRHMENR -

Business Review (Continued)

Two PRC subsidiaries of the Company received notices from the local tax
authorities in January and August 2018 stating that the local tax authorities
would carry out tax inspection on them in relation to previous tax periods.
As at the date hereof, no finding has been made in respect of the tax
inspection. The Board will continue to closely monitor the progress of this
matter and will update shareholders and potential investors as and when
appropriate and necessary.

Bf 7% [E1 B8 FINANCIAL REVIEW

s
RZE—N\F+_A=+—8 ' ARaEKREES
¥010L 2 B EITRR M B £10,070431,786 8% (=
T—+F+-A=+—H8 :10070431,786 I%) °

RZE—NF—H—H  KNRFHEA 39866732017
RITEBERRHRE ° £ 79 » 503,513,000 B PI% A HE 7%
e R - BEEREEITF IR -

RBEEREBHLE
RZB-—NF+ZA=+—H AEEZAEBLX
(BT BRITERBE N AR R RERSF ARGE
HZASHR)AT(ZE—+HE+-_A=1+—08":
1.5%) °

R-Z—)\Ft+_A=+—H AEEHEFRS
KB #401,700000t( —Z F — £ F: B K
631,700,00070) (BNIR& MRS EEWRT ERITE
O R E S A BB B 235,800,0007T( — T —+ 4 ¢
785 48,000,000 7T) ©

AEREBHRBERAN BB 700000 (ZF—+
£ ¢ #¥900,0007T) °

AEBZMERRB/ARNTEL 2R S MRITEER
EREXEBZERS AEBREEHRUINEEE
EHINERBEZER

Equity
The number of issued shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company as at 31
December 2018 was 10,070,431,786 (31 December 2017: 10,070,431,786).

As at 1 January 2018, the Company had 398,667,320 outstanding share
options. During the year, 503,513,000 share options were granted. No share
options were exercised or lapsed during the year.

Liquidity and gearing

The Group's gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of interest-bearing
bank loan over equity attributable to equity holders of the Company) as at
31 December 2018 was nil (31 December 2017: 1.5%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a net cash position of
HKS401.7 million (2017: HK$631.7 million) (being cash and cash equivalents
less interest-bearing bank loan) and other financial assets of HK$235.8
million (2017: HK$48.0 million).

The Group's finance costs for the year was HK0.7 million (2017: HK$0.9
million).
The Group'’s funding policy is to finance the business operations with

internally generated cash and bank facilities. The Group continues to adopt
a policy of hedging foreign currency liabilities with foreign currency assets.

2018 %%} ANNUAL REPORT 19



BHREEZRERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEENWmE D

Management Discussion and Analysis

7B Bt 58 REMUNERATION POLICIES

BT 7 HMWAESBEIRETR - AEBREARXKR
EEzHs MBS AEBIREAERE TR
MEME TEF - BREBERRE  FEEEZR
AEeRRHAEE AEBEEREBEFTAEZN
MeRmE(BREEREXNE BOIHTRESHE)
7576 546,100,000 70 ( ZZF — £ : ¥ 499,500,000
)  R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H ~"EFHE
FA8459% (- T —+%F : 8248 %) 2B NGBS -

REBE-ZT-—NFE+-_A=+—BIEFEERN EF
ERARME TIETEL2EER TH 38699120 %%
MzBRHEE  BEWIIEARBES - FETHA
BRFTERRRFEPIMANBEA (R LR
AlZER) °

MBEESENHFN AL RESE(([EF8 )22
RABHME B SR NEREETE °

Staff remuneration packages comprise salary and discretionary bonuses
and are determined with reference to the market conditions and the
performance of the Group and the individuals concerned. The Group also
provides other staff benefits including medical insurance, continuing
education allowances, provident funds and incentive schemes to eligible
staff. The total remuneration paid to the employees (including pension
costs, share-based payments and the directors’ remunerations) of the
Group in the year under review was HK$546.1 million (2017: HK$499.5
million). As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 8,459 full-time and
temporary employees (2017: 8,248).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board resolved to grant
share awards in respect of 38,699,120 shares to certain selected participants
who are not a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, nor an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any of
them.

All directors’ remunerations were determined by the board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company after considering the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

R D ERE ¥ OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

BRAKED AR 2 FBHNUMBHRKRM T4 -

= SR & 2 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the operating segment information are set out in note 4 to the
financial statements.

RIZ-NFE+-A=+—8 AEBEWEEMK

The Group did not have any contingent liability as at 31 December 2018.

% 7= 3% 7 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

KB N\F+=A=+—B  AEELEEAE
B -
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The Group did not have any pledge of assets as at 31 December 2018.
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EARB R HENE AT KRB 7 MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

RBI R4 P9 - 7 S B30 A U B 2 Al
BB FME AR -

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
or affiliated companies during the year under review.

EEE 415 PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

BARFREEZFEMHIN REERREEAFHRA
MY BBRTHEMERSMHMEANKREEEATE

Save for the events disclosed in this Annual Report, there are no other
important events that occurred after the balance sheet date and up to the
date of this Annual Report and had material effects on the Group.

F EEJ{Z KEY RELATIONSHIPS

’E
BEEERAANEREANEEFERNIEF R -
AEECDRAETIRESBIREN  8FRFRLE
AEHR  BERR  FHELERPLIEERE -
RTEEESIBAZRREE - BEEIEHAE
I S B2 ESNE AR R R AR - AEETRERIES
RERENE S BREAESERBEA - ) EEE & K&
BREGE UABREBRRRENEER - It
Sh AEBERIHBE  EAEBWEIHEATE
B WEEMPISAD T HIRMISRIRRAE

BPFHBRR A BERAEEEN B R
W THEBBCR ] — & -

BE

ERRERBIRME  AEENEERE AL E
BEE - ARkt - RPMIFBETEBE TRERTH
ZREAK - HPERFAEEFZEEBR  2H
HEKROMERKRHEEZTNAK - BT HEE
- RMERLEERGHT L - BERBEET
B XHLWLEFTERR  EEEARBEREDET
E-BEERMIN ARETRTEREAEHOE
g EEEEEFRTNHRE - BRI AIEBMN
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BEHHEEE - CBERIME  —EfRME
FEEENRERES -

Employees

The management is fully aware that human resources are crucial to the
continued success of the Group. The Group has provided staff with
different kinds of benefit, including annual and other paid leaves, medical
insurance, continuing education allowances and provident funds. For the
personal development of our employees, they have been provided with in-
house training and are encouraged to attend external relevant courses. The
Group has also set up various incentive schemes, including performance
related bonuses, share award scheme and share option scheme, to
motivate and reward well-performed employees. In addition, the incentive
schemes of the Group have been designed to give the relevant staff a
sense of ownership and let them share the results of the efforts that they
have contributed.

Details of our remuneration policies have been set out in the
“Remuneration Policies” section in this Management Discussion and
Analysis.

Customers

Being a QSR service provider, we have customers coming from different
social classes, regions and districts. It is an on-going exercise for us to
understand the needs and appetite of our customers. The primary
objective of our product development team is to launch new and tasty
products to satisfy the taste buds of our customers. For the convenience of
our customers, we have set up call centres, cooperated with platform
service providers and launched website ordering system for our customers
to place their orders wherever they are. Apart from quality food, the Group
has been continuously upgrading the renovation of its stores so as to give
our customers a feeling of being home. Our customers also have various
channels, including WeChat, telephone hotline and our newly launched
customer relationship management system, to let us know which areas of
services we could further strengthen and understand our customers’
consuming habit. The satisfaction of our customers is always one of our key
performance indicators.
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FEFFZ (4Z) KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Continued)

HIEm
RmiE—ERASEIRERNET —HAZE®H
IS o AREEIEHER I BRT T BRRAARRE
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Suppliers

Food safety is one of the most important areas that the Group has always
put emphasis on. The Group has built a stringent internal control system in
the selection of suppliers. The system requires our procurement team to
assess the potential suppliers from different perspectives, including their
track records, experience, production ability, financial strength and
reputation. Newly selected suppliers will be tested with orders of smaller
size before they are placed with regular size orders. As an on-going exercise
to monitor the quality of food and material supplies, the procurement
team and production team of the Group would meet and visit our
suppliers on regular and irregular basis. Our teams may give advices to our
suppliers on ways to further improve their production efficiency and
standard, where appropriate. This helps to establish a mutual trust and
create a win-win situation for both our suppliers and the Group.

BIREER #1715 % ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

REBEFTZEIRRERE KA —REERR
M - B NBBEEE N REBMENER
BA [REREHRENZE - RANERKEERD
EBRBETERRRMAGTEE  WHEEMHEER
BB RN — TSR A RE - BRPIEHIRIRE
A BT FIESRISO 14001 IRIRER ZRRESD
ERR o

BEAEBRAHBEENNRERESEINE
%8B BERMAFREE4 BEFFHIRE S
RERRE -

The Group is committed to build an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving the environment. We strive to
minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of materials. We also require our suppliers to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules and
possess all necessary permission and approval from the relevant regulators.
Our commitment in environmental protection can be demonstrated by
the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System certification obtained.

For further information about the environmental and social performance of
the Group for this financial year, please refer to the Environmental, Social,
and Governance Report set out on pages 29 to 41 of this Annual Report.

B <piEE 5 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

ARRAPERERFSEMAY  MEESFERTEHR
FrEm - Fitt - ARRABTHRERERBEZE
RARZEM - AEBEXRBEEHRARRETEZH
BLRET AMANAMEBTREARER -8BE
"R N\ET A=+ -REFEREEARER
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The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its securities are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Hence, the Company is subject
to the applicable laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and Hong
Kong. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC and therefore have to comply with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations. The management is not aware of any non-
compliance of any of the above relevant laws and regulations by the Group
that would have a significant impact on the Group during the year ended
31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report.
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= E [F Pz & <88 BA K & PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
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The management of the Group reviewed all aspects of the Group's
corporate strategies, including those relating to the market, operation and
finance, from time to time. Below are the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces and the measures that the management has taken to
manage such risks and uncertainties.

Franchise-related Risks

Risks

The Group’s franchise business in the PRC is subject to the terms of the
franchise agreements with the related franchisors. The Group's operation
and business will be materially and adversely affected in the event that any
or all of the franchise agreements are terminated or could not be renewed.

Measures to manage the risks

The Group's major franchise agreements for its existing franchise regions
have remaining terms (including automatically renewable terms under the
relevant franchise agreements) of no less than approximately 12 years in
general. The Group has assigned staff to observe the requirements under
the relevant franchise agreements. In addition, the Group has constant
dialogues and maintained good business relationships with the relevant
franchisors.

Risk of Outbreak of Food-borne Diseases

Risks

As a catering service provider, the Group has to rely on its suppliers for
food ingredients. In the event that there is any outbreak of food-borne
diseases, the supply of food ingredients of the Group may be affected.

Measures to manage the risks

It is the Group's policy that there should be more than one supplier,
preferably from different districts or regions, for all the major and key food
ingredients. In addition, the Group maintains adequate stock for its food
ingredients so as to allow time to source new suppliers in case suppliers
from one specific region are affected by any outbreak of food-borne
diseases.
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FEREMKETEBAEZE(4Z) PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
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Food Contamination Risk

Risks

The Group's business is susceptible to the risk of food contamination. In
the event that there is food contamination in the Group and the instance is
reported in the media, the business of the Group would be negatively
affected.

Measures to manage the risks

Food safety is of utmost importance to a catering service provider. The
Group has a stringent internal control in place in identifying and
monitoring food ingredient suppliers on a continual basis. There are also
internal food safety and hygiene policies and standard for the food
handling staff to follow. The Group also has quality control teams to inspect
its stores and distribution centres on a regular and rotational basis.
Identified weaknesses will be reported and corrected as soon as possible.

Exchange Control Risks

Risks

As the Group's business and operation are basically in the PRC, the revenue
and expenses are principally denominated in Renminbi. Payments of
expenses and dividends in Hong Kong have to depend on dividends and
other income and fund remittances from the Group's PRC operating
companies. In case there are any restrictions of fund remittance by the
relevant PRC government authorities in future, the ability of the Group to
settle its Hong Kong debts and payables and declare dividends in Hong
Kong will be adversely affected.

Measures to manage the risks

The Group has retained funds in Hong Kong to meet the payment needs in
Hong Kong within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the Group has
maintained good relationship with banking institutions in Hong Kong
which have provided the Group with banking facilities to meet the cash
needs of the Group's Hong Kong head office, where necessary.
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PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risks

Risks

The Group's business operations are conducted in the PRC and all of its
sales are made in the PRC. The Group's business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects are therefore significantly affected by
economic, political and legal developments in the PRC. The PRC economy
differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects,
including the degree of government involvement, the level of
development, the growth rate and the allocation of resources. The PRC
government may implement various measures to encourage economic
growth and guide the allocation of resources. Some of these measures
may benefit the overall PRC economy, but may also have a negative effect
on the Group.

Measures to manage the risks

Business operations are always subject to the laws and regulations and the
ups and downs of the economy of the places where they are in. Almost all
of the Group's staff engaged in the Group’s PRC business operations are
PRC nationals who are familiar with the economic and political
environment in the PRC. In addition, the Group has a designated team of
staff responsible for monitoring the economic, social and political
development in the PRC with an aim to enable the Group to prepare itself
and make necessary adjustments to its business strategies ahead as far as
possible. Furthermore, the management would not rule out any possibility
of considering opportunities to invest in non-PRC businesses that would
bring steady long-term growth to the Group to diversify the concentration
risks.
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Catering Industry Development Trends in 2019

In 2019, though overshadowed by uncertainties, the Chinese economy will
remain relatively stable. Instead of aiming for fast growth, China has
changed her economic development focus to striving for quality growth
and, as a result, some new problems and challenges have emerged. The
real economy has been struggling, activities of major sectors have
remained weak and unemployment rate stands high. Transformation and
upgrade are needed for some industries.

Generation Z, a new generation of consumers, has more diverse needs
with regard to catering. To fulfil those needs, market players have to modify
their business structure to enable them to provide various products under
different brands. They also need to enhance supply chain operation and
management. Increasing health consciousness among consumers is
fueling demand for healthy food. The catering industry is transforming and
alive to the need to upgrade.

New technologies, such as 5G, Blockchain, Internet-of-Things and Artificial
Intelligence, will have great impacts, some disruptive, on the service
pattern and business model of catering. Catering companies need to stay
abreast of technological development and adjust their business models
accordingly.

In addition, government policies on food safety, environmental protection
and business standards will continue to affect the industry. Compliance
with those standards while essential has cost implications for players in the
catering industry. Digitalization and automation of operation, finance and
the supply chain seem the way to go if catering companies want to reduce
costs and improve operational efficiency.

Looking ahead, catering industry operations will be more regulated in favor
of professional corporate players and branded catering chains. Players
strong in management will have competitive edge over their peers. Chain
store operators with a sophisticated management system and extensive
experience in providing quality products and meticulous services will be
able to more effectively control costs and earn customer loyalty.
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Future Development Strategy

The Hop Hing Group will make good use of its own brand advantages and
capitalize on its stores network and strong management to grow its
business. With a responsive management team, the Group will be able to
seize the opportunities arising from China’s growing embrace of high-
quality consumption.

The Group will pay close attention to the development of the mainland
catering market and demand of customers. It will adjust its development
strategies as necessary heeding market changes to ensure it has the ability
to innovate and execute its business development plans and compete
effectively at all times. Technological advancement aside, the purpose of
the catering industry will never change, which is to provide wide variety of
choices of healthy, safe and delicious food to consumers. The Group will
diligently observe this basic requirement of the catering industry and
continue to offer “Quality With Conscience”, adopting safety, hygiene
management and supervision measures to ensure the food and products it
provides are of high relevant standard and promise great value-for-money.

The Company will keep improving and make good use of its CRM system
and relevant technologies to establish a customer-oriented business model
and organization structure to help it promptly communicate with
customers and understand and satisfy their needs. The ultimate goal it
wishes to accomplish is for existing customers to recommend to others the
products and services of Hop Hing. The Group will work hard in interacting
with customers to gather more customer information to help it with
promoting different products of different prices and in different periods to
appeal to different customer groups, in other words, managing customers’
consumption patterns to increase their return rates and ensure they have
the most satisfying consumption experience.

Through simple and effective rules and incentive system, Hop Hing will
integrate technology into the internet to create innovative products,
services and operating model with iterative update. Through incentive
mechanisms, Hop Hing will continue to promote the enterprise values of
positive energy, creativity and execution to empower the organization and
its personnel in achieving the most organized and efficient operation.
Focusing on opening “dine-in” stores and “delivery mode” stores will be
conducive to improving cost efficiency and accurate differentiation of
online and offline products will enable better use of the delivery platforms
and in turn enhance profitability of the related businesses.
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Future Development Strategy (Continued)

The Group will, taking reference of customers’ perspective, improve
product brand designs and images and upgrade products, services and
employ relevant technology to rejuvenate product brands. Through
research, acquisition of brand and technology and equity, the Group will
continue to add new brands to its portfolio and diversify product offerings,
so as to suit the different tastes of customers, and ultimately build a food
and product ecological chain that can help its businesses thrive. The Group
will continue to introduce new retail projects and adopt efficient and
reasonable cost control measures to the end of increasing profitability. It
will also efficiently open more stores to expand store networks and
improve returns on investment.

Looking ahead, the catering market in mainland China will keep growing.
Retailers proactive in innovation, armed with an outstanding management
team and efficient operation will enjoy competitive advantage in the
market. The Group will give full play to its advantage in innovation,
management and operation and continue to explore various opportunities,
including consolidating cooperation and exploring new cooperative
modes with franchisors and existing and potential business partners to
help develop the Group into a leading multi-brand QSR operator in China.
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On behalf of the Group, I would like to thank all of our customers, suppliers,
business associates and bankers for their unwavering support. | wish to also
express my gratitude to members of our management team and staff for
their diligence and perseverance during the past year.

On behalf of the Board

HUNG MING KEI, MARVIN
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) has been
prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), covering the Group's performance in terms
of stakeholder engagement, environmental protection, care for employees,
operating practices and community from 1 January to 31 December 2018.

The Group prepared the report according to the four major principles:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as required by the Guide.
The Group publishes its ESG Report annually to disclose the performance
of Environmental, Social and Governance, on the basis of which the Group
will make continued improvement to the management of environmental,
social and governance aspects.

Identification and Communication With Stakeholders
The Group has a diverse mix of stakeholders of which many of them are
customers and employees. We have identified stakeholders crucial to the
Group, including customers, employees, governments, shareholders and
investors, suppliers, community organisations, business associations and
media, and collected their comments through different channels, like
documents of policy, questionnaires, and service hotlines.

In preparing this ESG Report and to understand the expectation of different
stakeholders on the report contents and allow them to comment on the
Group's ESG performance, the Group has engaged an independent third-
party consultant to host communications with stakeholders in the form of
face-to-face communication, telephone interviews, questionnaires and on-
site visits on an ongoing basis. This can make sure we have fair
communication with our stakeholders, so that the main contents of the
report could be decided, and the Group's future policies and guidelines
could be developed therefrom.

The ESG Report covers a wide range of aspects. The Group needs to
identify aspects of relevance to form its base for disclosing its management
of sustainable development and information. The Group engaged an
independent third-party consultant to host communications with
stakeholders and identified the more important aspects. The Group has
also defined the scope of disclosures in this ESG Report and the coming
year's direction of preparing the ESG Report. In the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group's business and operating environment was
similar to that of the previous years.
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Environmental Protection

The Group has been persistent in carrying out its business with strict
adherence to its motto — “Quality with Conscience”. In addition to food
quality, we also pay attention to the impact of our daily operational
activities on the environment. The Group has formulated an environmental
management system and the Group is the first ISO14001 certified entity
among all peers in the food and beverage industry in the PRC, for the
purpose of complying with local environmental law and defining the
environmental protection responsibility of each reporting unit.

Emissions

Air Emissions

As a QSR chain operator, we inevitably use fuels in cooking which results in
giving out smoke. In the PRC, the Group is required to comply and has
complied with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air emissions. To minimize the impact of smoke on the
surrounding environment, the Group strictly monitors the efficiency of the
smoke exhaust equipments installed at our restaurants. Qualified smoke
purification devices complying with the relevant local environmental
standards are installed as well. The installation of the smoke purification
devices to Yoshinoya stores in Beijing has been finished in 2018. To
maximize the service life of these devices, our Operation Department has
devised a set of servicing and maintenance plans, including cleaning the
smoke purification devices regularly, arranging regular maintenance of the
devices and conducting cleaning reports. In this way, compliance with
local regulations by our stores and freshness of the air around the stores
can be assured.

Waste Management

All chain stores, food processing centers and offices generate different
wastes during their daily operations, which can be broadly classified into
hazardous waste, recyclable waste, non-recyclable waste and processed
meat waste. These may have various degrees of impact on the
environment during the production, transit and disposal process of
different materials. In the PRC, the Group is required to comply and has
complied with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. For this
reason, the Group tries its best to dispose of different types of wastes at
different operating areas properly. In this way, we not only increase the
recycling rate, but also minimize the hygienic problem brought by wastes.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Waste Management (Continued)

The Group handles other wastes carefully, and recycles any useful materials
wherever possible. The food processing center of the Group handles a lot
of food each day. When it comes to meat, the Group controls finished
products rigorously so as to minimise the generation of debris and
wastage. In addition to food, the Group also collects statistical data and
monitors the production of wastes in the stores. Since the mid 2017, we
have collected and classified the wastes into recyclable waste and non-
recyclable waste, and passed it to the professional third parties waste
handlers to handle. The Group also collects and centralizes reusable parts,
plastic containers, cartons, packaging paper and waste paper to minimize
the production of wastes.

Recycling operators visit the stores daily to ensure that the recycling
process complies with the environmental protection and hygiene control
requirements. Carton and waste oil are initially collected by the designated
staff in stores to increase the recycling rate. According to the requirements
of the State Food and Drug Administration, each store has to post posters
with slogans like “Saving is honor”, “Do not waste”, to prompt consumers
not to leave food to reduce waste production and environmental pollution.

During the operations, while the Group uses no hazardous chemical, it
produces limited amount of fluorescent lamp and accumulator wastes that
have been categorised as hazardous wastes by the local government. All
hazardous wastes are collected by designated persons at designated
places so as to avoid mishandling by other staff, which may cause
environmental pollution and endanger the health.

Carbon Audit

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group tries its best to minimize the
environmental impact of its operations and in particular spares no effort in
reducing its carbon footprint. For this purpose, the Group has started to
understand its carbon emission patterns and map out pertinent
improvement measures.

In the PRC, the Group is required to comply and has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to greenhouse
gas emissions.

The Group engages a third-party professional organization to carry out a
carbon audit and measure the emission intensity of each unit during the
reporting year. For its stores operation, carbon emissions mainly come from
natural gas consumption by stove and electricity consumption by other
cookers and lights. After detailed analysis of the carbon emission data, the
Group put in place different emission reduction measures, including
strengthening the monitoring of energy consumption during peak and off-
peak hours of business. In the future, the Group will maintain on-going
detection of carbon emission data at all carbon-emitting places and
develop different emission reduction policies from year to year.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Carbon Audit (Continued)
2018
Greenhouse gas emissions 54515 tCO2
Greenhouse gas emission intensity 23 tCO,/Revenue
(Million HKD)
Food Residue production volume 3,325 Tonnes
Waste cooking oil production volume 606 Tonnes
Paper waste production volume 499 Kg
Paper waste recycling volume 620 Kg
Metal waste production volume 108 Kg

Resources Consumption

Energy consumption

Energy consumption is closely related to carbon emissions. The Group
reviews the emission data by periods at stores every year and sets targets
for the energy consumption to monitor the power consumption. A set of
energy-saving measures have been put into effect at all stores to meet the
targets. To consume energy efficiently, the Company has worked out
schedules of start and shut-down time on different kinds of energy-
consuming equipments, such as lights and air-conditioners, for the stores,
which will be followed by the stores. When actual consumption deviates
from our planned consumptions significantly, the Operation Department
of the Company would investigate into the causes of such deviation and
make adjustment, where necessary. Besides the schedule, our stores use
zoned lighting systems which allow the stores to power on or off in
different zones as needed. In addition, cooking devices will also be
switched on by reference to customer traffic. The Group also tries to use
equipments with higher energy efficiency, to save energy. Starting from
2017, the Group has been gradually replacing the lighting systems at stores
by LED. By carrying out a series of energy-saving measures, our stores have
been able to maximise energy efficiency and minimize carbon footprint.

Water Resource Consumption

The Group uses our precious water resource with great care. During the
daily operations, stores use water for washing raw materials, preparation of
food, and cleaning the stores. The Group keeps a close eye on water
consumption by stores. Based on water consumption in previous year,
Operation Department develops an annual plan at the beginning of each
year. They check the water consumption at the end of each month, analyse
the process which have high unexpected usage of water, and come up
with improvement measures. Malfunction equipment is usually one of the
causes for wastage of water. Hence, the Company will carry out regular
check and timely repair to water-consuming equipments according to the
maintenance plan. In order to reduce the water consumption, water saving
is one of our important considerations when we purchase new
equipments.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Resources Consumption (Continued)

Water Resource Consumption (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group did not encounter any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

2018

Total Energy consumption 63,576 MWh
Total Energy consumption intensity 27 MWh/Revenue
(Million HKD)

Electricity consumption 61,643 MWh
Electricity consumption intensity 26 MWh/Revenue
(Million HKD)

Natural gas consumption 155,821 m?
Towngas consumption 49,099 m?
Gasoline consumption 2.6 Tonnes
Diesel consumption 0 Tonnes
Water consumption 440,346 m?
Water consumption intensity 185 m?3/Revenue
(Million HKD)

Bottled water consumption 465 m?

Packaging material consumption 2,241 Tonnes
Care for Employees

Due to the nature of the food and beverage industry, employees closely
interact with our customers. Our employees play an important role in
driving our business growth and shaping our company image. Hence, the
Group treasures every talent and is eager to provide the best working
environment and create the opportunities for self-development to every
employee and grow with them.

Employment

Employee Conditions and Benefits

The Group is aware that employees are the cornerstone of the Company’s
business and future development and therefore attract and retain top-
notch talents by providing them with people-oriented employee benefits
and policies.

In the PRC, the Group is subject to relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Employee Conditions and Benefits (Continued)

The Group purchases social insurance for our employees as required by the
local government where we operate. Our employees also enjoy statutory
holidays, including breastfeeding leave and paternity leave for male
employees. Moreover, the Group also provides a wide range of other
benefits to retain the employees, such as discounted meals, special
allowances for those who work in high-temperature area in summer or in
low temperature freezers. To ensure employees are not assigned with
workload that is intolerable to them and to protect juveniles, the Group
prohibits the hiring of any person aged below 18.

The Group believes that interesting pastimes can help relieve the stress of
employees and unite the team together. The Group designs a wide range
of activities for employees care plan. The activities carried out by the Group
included, providing free meals and holding nature tours and film shows for
staff.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group is committed to creating an equal working environment. A set
of assessment procedures have been formulated, which allows all store
employees to have equal promotion opportunity. A set of key performance
indicators (the “KPIs") have been designed to assess the performance of
every employee comprehensively and fairly. Under the performance
assessment framework, managers-in-charge can measure employee
performance against the KPIs and determine who should be promoted.

We oppose any form of discrimination. Employment opportunities should
not be affected by the applicant’s disability. The Group has fulfilled its anti-
discrimination commitments by deeds and has hired employees with
disabilities in certain branches. In addition, employees have been issued
with the “Notes on Employment of Persons with Disabilities” so that they
know how to cooperate with their colleagues in their daily work.
Supervisors will assign jobs that match the abilities of persons with
disabilities. The supervisors will also pay more attention to the work
condition of persons with disabilities and provide them with timely help.
Apart from these, a regular teacher will be arranged for them and will
accommodate their work schedule. The Human Resources Department will
collect personal information of persons with disabilities from the month
they join the Company, and the Company will begin to pay social
insurance for them, protecting their legitimate rights and interests and
allowing them to obtain opportunities for normal work and self-reliance.
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Employee Communication

Effective communication is of vital importance to cater for the needs of
employees. The Group maintains various means of communications with
employees. Employee meetings are held regularly. The departments under
Supporting Office and the stores have different forms of employee
meetings every month to update them with the Company’s new policies,
procedures and news from human resources and allow team members to
learn from and exchange ideas amongst themselves. Also, there are
bulletin boards at the Stores and Supporting Office from where employees
can get the latest information from the Company and staff loyalty can be
enhanced. The Group also publishes an internal magazine, “Magazine of
Conscience” regularly. It is the joint effort of different departments of the
Group and reflects the comments from the employees. The Group also
wishes to hear from employees directly. An “employee suggestions
mailbox” has been made available for employees to raise their innovative
ideas to the Human Resources Department. The Group also requires all
store managers to talk with their staff proactively, to understand the front-
line employees’ comments on the Group’s business. These would be taken
into account in the formulation of our people-oriented human resources
policies.

Health and Safety

Employee health is a key in upkeeping the superior food and service
quality. Occupational safety is a top priority to the Group. The Group has
put into action Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Requirements promulgated by the local governments and required by
applicable laws and regulations of the relevant local governments. The
Human Resources Department provides a basic security package to
employees. In addition to providing accident insurance coverage,
employees will have body check each year so as to let them know their
health conditions.
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

Work environment is vital to employees’ safety. In order to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, the Group develops and
implements regularly plans for purchasing work safety protective
equipments (WSPE), to assure that sufficient and proper WSPE are available
to employees in the workplace. Moreover, the Group pays particular
attention to safety black-spots in the workplace. A Hazard Analysis Critical
Control Point (HACCP) group has been formed to monitor the production
environment and address any safety hazard on a regular basis, and to
minimise the incidence of glass burst, external effluent seepage and any
other hazards.

The Company understands that prevention is better than cure. The
Company has designed a whole set of occupational safety training
programs, including occupational health and safety management
requirements, occupational disease prevention, HACCP program. Every
employee must pass the exams after completing the required trainings so
as to ensure that they have the required knowledge of occupational health
and safety.

Employee Development

The Company provides trainings in diversified forms for employees at
different levels to receive a wide range of tailored on the job education and
trainings to strengthen their business operating skill. To ensure the
effectiveness of the training programs so that our customers are provided
with quality services, trainees are required to meet the standards within a
specified period of time.

The Group attaches great importance to employees’ awareness of food
safety. Therefore, we focus on professional training in the past year. We
held the food safety supervisor course and conducted training for food
safety supervisors in stores. A total of 316 people participated in the course.
Our Quality Control Department conducted food safety improvement
activities in each of the quarters.
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Operating Practices

Food is closely related to citizens’ health. Quality is the most important
factor to achieve sustainable growth of a QSR business and build a
trustworthy commercial brand. We attach greater importance to food
safety and nutrition than to speed and low price. With stringent rules on
our purchase of raw materials, transportation and food preparation process,
our customers can feel at ease when enjoying our food.

Supply Chain Management

Procurement Policy

Supplier is the first control point on food quality and safety management
of the Group. Apart from taste, we need to ensure all the raw materials are
safe. The Group maintains a rigorous supplier selection mechanism, with
indicators such as supply time and origin, and safety system to select the
suppliers by reviewing the relevant documents and records and carrying
out site visits. All materials are supplied from designated places and we
would choose the leading companies of each sector as our partners, where
appropriate. We use environmental performance as one of the criteria, and
select only 1ISO14001 certified companies and then choose suppliers with
established environmental management system. After a supplier is
selected, the Group arranges on-site inspection for reviewing their food
safety. Suppliers evaluation would be done once a year to review the
quality of their products to ensure fulfillment of the Group’s standard. To
monitor the food safety and quality from the source and ensure ingredients
are up to safety standard, raw materials purchased would be sent on a
sample basis to a third-party inspection organization for quality test.

Logistics Management

While the process of choosing suppliers is the first line of defence on
safeguarding food quality, the transportation of raw materials is also critical
to quality assurance. We have designed a set of indicators for the
measurement of quality of raw materials in transit, for example, hygiene
and temperature of trucks and storage. Only qualified products can be
sold. Meanwhile, our logistics centre has an in-house laboratory for detailed
testing of raw materials. Following proper logistics management, all food
materials delivered to stores are of good quality and are prevented from
food safety incidents caused by food material spoilage.
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services

Food Safety

Food can provide nutrients, but as an old saying goes, a closed mouth
catches no flies. Eating insanitary or improperly treated food may give rise
to serious health problems. We aim at zero incidences of critical food safety
accident and building a brand of food and beverage which can be trusted
by our customers. The Company has sound food safety system with
rigorous internal control, external control and quality handbooks. The
Group is subject to and has complied with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact relating to customer health and safety in the
PRC.

Our stores perform daily checking on our raw materials in accordance with
our internal food safety checklist to ensure that food ingredients are
consumed before its expiry dates. Also, we have well-trained food safety
staff responsible for the food safety inspection to avoid any outbreak of
safety incidents. For hygiene management, our stores carry out regular
cleaning. For those stores with hygiene not meeting our internal standard,
frequency of cleaning will be increased to ensure the food safety.

We are I1SO 22000 and HACCP certified in food production management.
Food safety management involves many aspects. While we have ensured
the quality of raw materials, we also require all our equipments to be clean
and functioning properly, waste and effluent are properly disposed of, and
disinfection and pests control are done regularly in the stores. Cooking
procedures determine food safety and taste. We have prepared a detailed
standard operating procedures on all items. Employees are required to
follow our good processing practices in food preparation. In addition, they
must also meet our hygienic requirements, so that our customers may
enjoy products of consistent quality at any of our stores. To facilitate
enforcement of the above mentioned food safety policies, we have also
formed a food safety committee to carry out detailed inspections on the
safety of food preparation. Apart from the controls exercised by the supply
chain, the food safety committee also assesses raw materials, processes,
kitchen equipments and the surrounding environment, and carries out
laboratory tests on randomly picked samples, to ensure food safety with a
scientific approach.



BREEZRERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

R dEREREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

“EEH (E)

EmRREEER(&E)

BEEREE

AEBEREHFANNRERY - BERNSBETEE
MRE mRE - NERESKAENEERE - HfIR
HARBEE  BERER REER 2EREEE
MAERR - HMESFHSRRIEETETESR
MEERAT  RANAEDRERERE - R MM
B RERER AnhE RRBEEEF - HWE
FaESETENTRFN®E - BFISRERKEER
RITVER - ERKRNFTEELNRE  BETER
IR MM REME -

RRARMERBESR  BMAESRHERET @
BEARBREBREFES YA (BREXEINE - #T
- RPEHFE BBRBF)NTFREKF B
HRMERZ BERE REEENEAET A
B HERGRHEESIH  MRRESEFPHE
EEHEAMEE -

BEERFRILE
AEBEBAORFFPREABENERKLERY - REE
FE—EATPORF - BHAGE T(ARRFEE
miz) MR TEIREEFRFNIES - BRE
—ERFA F AR RC SR M IR - BAF B ERRER
ER HNE INERFTENERF  AIABEBER
BH - EEABHIFITRLERL - RANERA
BEERIRFEIUERREET —HEAEAR
85 WHRFALEIRFEN - IARFREBIENT
BEREFEINMERE  UHEBLRMNER
Ko BR#5

LRI - HPIBRBREEZEALE  ZILET
AN EEEEN G BERS - HARBHERE
BEBRZHAE FIET(EELREEERTE S
B)  ZRFEBTFMFR T LREDEE - ZE1E
EREIARERAREAREMEBREFEAER -
EA B TAREARRRRZMALS S REHELD
REXHEBHARKEZENLRED

Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services (Continued)

Customer Satisfaction

Competition in the QSR sector in which the Group operates is intensive. To
become a favourite QSR brand of customers, we need to put emphasis on
our service attitude, dining environment and food quality, to assure the
best dining experience for our customers in every aspects, rather than care
solely about the speed of preparation. We carry out customer satisfaction
survey randomly every quarter, which covers a number of areas, such as
food quality, service experience, food portion and environment cleanliness.
After analyzing scores given by customers from different aspects, we
identify key areas that have rooms for improvement and take the
improvement action in the following quarter and we continuously improve
our food and service quality.

Aiming at improving our food and service quality, we have implemented
procedures to assign specific people to monitor the comments of each
customers reviewed from various platforms (including Meituan Waimai, Ele.
Me, Dianping, Group Buying) on food quality, dining environment, service
attitude through the comments board, aspects of dine-in, take-out and
member spending so as to allow a more efficient response on improving
customer satisfaction.

Customer Complaint and Privacy

The Group is committed to providing customers with quality products and
services and taking every customer complaint seriously. We have
formulated the “Procedures for Handling Customers’ Complaints”, which
set out the guidelines for employees to handle customers’ complaints and
ensure that each complaint is documented and followed up. If customers
have any complaints about dine-in, take-out, delivery and meal ordering,
they can voice their comments by phone, e-mail, in writing or in person at
the stores. Our customer service staff will do their best to understand and
handle the feedback after receiving the complaint and record the
complaint in detail. The complaint processing records will be used for
annual analysis and feedback to continuously optimize our products and
services.

At the same time, we vigorously protect customers’ personal privacy and
prohibit employees from disclosing customer data and membership data.
We have formulated the “Regulations on the Management of Information
Security” according to the provisions of relevant laws and regulations. We
have disciplinary measures detailed in our employee handbook prohibiting
employees from disclosing customers’ personal data without the written
consent of the Company. Any employee who copies, keeps, or removes
confidential documents without the Company’s consent will be subject to
disciplinary actions.
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Anti-Corruption and Code of Conduct

The Group pursues Quality with Conscience. While product and service
quality is indeed something we work hard for, the Group also cares about
business ethics by complying with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. Every employee is required to abide by the Code of Conduct
and good practices set forth by the Group. The Group explicitly requires
every employee to abide by the laws of the PRC. Accepting any gift from
any supplier or customer by any employees in the name of the Company
in any form or by any means is forbidden. The anti-corruption policy of the
Group has proven to be of positive effect. No legal case regarding corrupt
practices happened within the Group last year. The Group has put in place
whistle-blowing procedures. Any employee may report any illegal, immoral
practice or any act in breach of the Code of Conduct to his or her
immediate head or the Internal Audit Department. The whistleblower will
be protected. Investigation will be made and the case will be followed up.
In this way, we could create a fair business environment.

Community

Community Activities

Our business is based on the community and we have established a large
business network in areas where we operate to integrate into the lives of
local residents with quality food. Apart from the expansion of catering
business, we are also concerned about the interests of the people in the
areas where we operate. The Group pays attention to the needs of the
disadvantaged communities living in the areas where we operate and
recruits persons with disabilities to join our service team. In addition, the
Group also assists in holding public welfare activities and pays special
attention to education and cultural exchange activities. We also encourage
employees to participate. Hop Hing has also been widely recognized by
the society for its community investment and was awarded the “Corporate
Social Responsibility Award” by “Internet +” Youth Development
Conference Organizing Committee in 2017.

Catering business requires a large number of employees who cook food
and serve guests. We can create jobs in the area and enable local residents
to work near their place of residence. Furthermore, we also employ persons
with disabilities. Even though persons with disabilities are often at a weak
position in the workplace, they have the same ability to work as the general
public. We take a vote of confidence in the persons with disabilities,
allowing them entry to the community.
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Community (Continued)

Community Activities (Continued)

The Group is concerned about the future development of the community
and fully understand that education has a decisive influence on the
development of the next generation of the community. The Group
specifically assists in organizing community activities related to education,
including cultural exchange activities for students in Beijing and Hong
Kong. We continued to assist in holding the “Beijing-Hong Kong
Outstanding Students” activity. The Group assisted in arranging youths in
Hong Kong to engage in intern work in Beijing. In addition to
understanding the office culture in the Mainland during the internship, all
interns visited places of interest accompanied by students from Beijing.
Students from both places could take this opportunity to get to know each
other. On the other hand, a group of selected outstanding students from
Beijing also went to Hong Kong to visit and study. The Group believes that
cultural exchange can build a bridge of friendship between the students of
the two places and provide participants with development opportunities
under the increasingly frequent business activities in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Apart from promoting cultural exchange between the two places, the
Group also cares about the needs of Hong Kong students studying in
Beijing. The Group assisted in organizing a series of activities for students in
Beijing, including the Hong Kong Student Games, Campus Culture Festival
for students both in Hongkong and Beijing, and the Hailball Experience
Activity. Diversified activities not only allow participants to experience new
things, but also provide a communication platform for them, which will
help them in developing and starting businesses in Beijing in the future.
We assisted in organizing training programs including “Training Young
Leaders” and “Continuing the Spirit of Outstanding Students in Hong
Kong". The project allows young people to participate in a series of group
activities to develop their team spirit and leadership capacity. In addition,
the Group anticipates that exchange between Hong Kong and the
Mainland will become increasingly frequent in the future. Bringing Hong
Kong students to North China for exchange can promote cultural exchange
between the two places. It can also serve as a starting point for young
people interested in the development in the Mainland. Through different
youth training programs and exchange activities, the Group brings
different cultural stimulus to young people, develops their potential and
helps the society cultivate talents.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company complied with the
code provisions (“CP") of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during
the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

The principles as set out in the CG Code have been adopted into our
corporate governance practices. To ensure strict compliance with the latest
CG Code, the Board will (a) review and regularly update the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (b) review and oversee
the continuous training of the directors and the senior management; (c)
examine and monitor the compliance and disclosure of legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and (e) review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

Business Model and Strategy

The Board directs the Group's development of business model and
strategy, and the management of the Company manages the
implementation of strategy and business, follow up on the implementation
status and report back to the Board from time to time. Details of the
Group's business and financial review for the year 2018 are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. The Model Code also applies to “relevant
employees” as defined in the CG Code.

Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, the directors
confirmed that they complied with the required standards in the Model
Code adopted by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2018.
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Report

Board of Directors

Up to the date of publication of this Annual Report, the Board comprised of
seven directors, including four independent non-executive directors, being
Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (Chairman), Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, Hon. Shek Lai
Him, Abraham, GBS, JP and Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph; one non-executive
director, being Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy and two executive directors,
being Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Wong
Kwok Ying. Biographical details of these directors which include
relationship among themselves are set out under “Directors’ Biographies”
on pages 58 to 62 of this Annual Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 30 August 2013 which was
revised on 17 January 2019 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company
recognises the importance and benefit of having a diverse Board that fits
its own business model and specific needs in order to achieve its corporate
goals and strategic objectives. The Company also sees diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage.

The Company aims to ensure that Board appointments will be made on
the basis of a range of diversity factors including but not limited to gender,
age, nationality, language, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industrial knowledge and length of service
as well as taking into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. Selection of candidates to join the Board
will be in part dependent on the pool of available candidates with the
necessary skills, knowledge and experience. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the
Board, having regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
compliance with the amendments of the Listing Rules and the CG Code
which took effect on 1 January 2019. The Dividend Policy aims to distribute
a certain percentage of its profits to shareholders, whilst retaining adequate
reserves for future business expansion.

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the shareholder
of the Company to be our goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia:-

(@)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
(b)  the Group's working capital requirement and surplus needed for

business strategies and future capital expenditure and business
development needs;
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Report

Board of Directors (Continued)
(c)  the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(d)  taxation consideration;
(e)  the general financial and economic conditions; and
f) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Any declaration of dividends will be at the absolute discretion of the Board
and may not have any implication on the Company’s declarations of
dividends in future.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy when appropriate and to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time and there can
be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any given
period.

The Board accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the Company. Although the Board bears overall
responsibility for the Company, the management of the Company
(including the executive directors) is the custodian and administrator of the
day-to-day operations of the Company.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation of independence
from each of all independent non-executive directors and considers them
to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board will meet at least four times a year and on other occasions when
a Board decision is required on a major issue. Directors may participate in
meeting via telephone or video-conferencing link. Board consents are
given by vote at board meetings and supplemented via circulation of
written resolutions between board meetings.

During the year, there were six full board meetings (including those with
voting by communication) and five full board circulations. Individual
attendance records for full board meetings of the Company are set out on
page 54 of this Annual Report.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors understand their respective responsibilities as a director towards
the conduct and business activities of the Company. To this end, the
Company is responsible for arranging and funding appropriate training
and activities to all directors as and when necessary. All directors have
provided their training records for the year under review to the company
secretary. A summary of the training received by directors during the year
according to the records provided by our directors is as follows:

Summary of Directors’ Training Records in 2018

BIED (BEEE -
BHEAS HMEER
WaE BER R
BB RE 2 )
Training activities
including meetings,
seminars/talks held by
professions/organizations
and/or reading materials

EENR Name of Director on relevant topics
B HRITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
AIETRA Seto Gin Chung, John v
$ERE Sze Tsai To, Robert v/
AEHR Shek Lai Him, Abraham 4
it S Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph v/
HHITESE Non-Executive Director
MIELEA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy v/
HITEFE Executive Directors
LR E Hung Ming Kei, Marvin v/
HE R Wong Kwok Ying v/
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated and
not performed by the same individual.

The Chairman’s principal responsibility is to ensure effective running of the
Board, enabling the Board as a whole to play a full and constructive part in
the development and determination of the Group’s business model,
strategies and overall commercial objectives. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the overall day-to-day management of the Group's
businesses and achieving the business model, strategies and commercial
objectives agreed by the Board.

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, and the Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin.

Non-Executive Directors’ Term of Office

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for specific
terms, subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company was established with a
particular responsibility to review the Company’s remuneration policy for
directors and members of the senior management. For details of the role
and function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which
align with the CP of the CG Code and have been posted on the websites of
both the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited ("HKEx") and the
Company.

The remuneration committee is comprised of Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (chairman of the
Company), and Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, JP, all of them are
independent non-executive directors of the Company. Individual
attendance records for the remuneration committee meetings are set out
on page 54 of this Annual Report.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this Annual Report, the committee
made recommendations to the Board on (i) a proposal to grant share
options; (ii) the director’s fee for the non-executive directors and the chief
executive officer of the Group; and (iii) a proposal to include store
managers into the list of awardees under the share award scheme of the
Company.

The director’s fees are subject to the approval of the shareholders at
general meetings. Other emoluments are reviewed by the remuneration
committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities of the directors
and the performance and results of the Group. Information relating to the
remuneration of each director for 2018 is set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee with a particular
responsibility to review the Board's structure, size and composition and to
make recommendation to the Board on the selection, appointment and
re-appointment of directors of the Company having given adequate
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy. For details of the role and
function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which
align with the CP of the CG Code and have been posted on the websites of
the HKEx and the Company.

The nomination committee is comprised of Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John
(chairman of the committee and chairman of the Company) and Hon. Shek
Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, JP, both of them are independent non-executive
directors of the Company and Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin, an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Company. Individual
attendance records for the nomination committee meetings are set out on
page 54 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the committee had (i) reviewed the Board structure, size
and composition; (ii) assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors; and (iii) made recommendation to the Board on
re-appointment of directors.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) in
compliance with the amendments of the Listing Rules and the CG Code
which took effect on 1 January 2019. The Nomination Policy has been
formulated to provide the key selection criteria and principles of the
nomination committee in making any such recommendation.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Selection Criteria

The nomination committee is responsible for, among other things,
identifying and evaluating suitably qualified candidates to become
directors and in doing so, it shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:—

(@)  character and integrity;

(b)  qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

(c)  potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience and independence;

(d)  commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest in
order to enhance shareholder value;

(e)  the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and any other measurable
objectives adopted by the Board for achieving diversity on the Board;

() the number of directorships in other listed companies;

(9)  compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent
non-executive director including but not limited to the length of
services of the independent non-executive director; and

(h)  any other relevant factors, including any potential and/or real conflict
of interests and succession planning, as may be determined by the
nomination committee or the Board from time to time.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the nomination committee shall convene a meeting and
invite nomination of candidates from Board members, for consideration by
the nomination committee. The nomination committee may also consider
nomination of candidates from the Company’s shareholders for the Board's
consideration.

For filling a casual vacancy, the nomination committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the
nomination committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Procedures (Continued)

For the purpose of or in relation to their standing for selection and
appointment as a director, the proposed candidates will be asked to
submit the necessary information, together with their written consents to
be appointed as a director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates recommended by the
Board to stand for election at the general meeting, a circular will be sent to
shareholders as required under the Listing Rules (the “Circular”). The names,
brief biographical information (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, remuneration and any other information of
the proposed candidates as required pursuant to the Listing Rules and
applicable laws, rules and regulations will be included in the Circular.
Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director, the Circular will also set out the
following information:—

(@)  the process for identifying the individual (if applicable) and why the
Board believes the individual shall be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

(b) if the proposed independent non-executive director will be holding
seven (or such number as stipulated in the Listing Rules from time to
time) or more listed company directorships, the reasons for the
Board to believe that the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

(0 the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the Board;

(d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board; and

(

)

any specific information required by the Listing Rules, which may be
amended from time to time.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with terms of reference
aligned with the CP of the CG Code for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal controls. For details of the role and function of
the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which align with the
CP of the CG Code and have also been posted on the websites of both the
HKEx and the Company.

The audit committee is comprised of Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (chairman of the
Company) and Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the audit
committee has the required appropriate professional financial
qualifications and experience. Individual attendance records for audit
committee meetings are set out on page 54 of this Annual Report.

In 2018, the audit committee had (i) reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with the management
auditing, risk management and internal control systems and financial
reporting matters including review of the Group’s audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017; (i) reviewed the audit
plan of the Group for 2018; (jii) made recommendation to the Board on the
re-appointment of external auditors; and (iv) reviewed the interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2018. Subsequent to the year end, the
audit committee of the Company reviewed the Group's financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During 2018, the fees payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for the Group's audit services amounted to HK$2,650,000. Ernst &
Young also provided the Group with non-audit services which amounted
to HK$817,000. The non-audit services during the year mainly included
interim review, advisory services on Environmental, Social and Governance
reporting and other services.
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Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. As at 31
December 2018, the directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which might cast significant doubt upon
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
included in this Annual Report.

Risk Management & Internal Control

The Board performs the role of a risk committee and is responsible for
overseeing the Group's risk management and internal control systems that
are designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and its compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. In devising the systems, the Group has
evaluated the nature and the extent of the risk, the likelihood of it
crystallizing and the cost of controls. The systems are designed to manage,
but not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against the risk of material
misstatement, fraud or losses.

In the course of the annual review, the Board had evaluated the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
the budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions. In addition, the Board has considered the effectiveness of the
Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems identify any
significant risks, evaluate the risk according to its likely impact and the
likelihood of occurrence and develop effective controls to manage or
mitigate any risks. Findings of the regular reviews of the systems are
reported to the audit committee.

The inside information policy of the Company has set out guidelines to the
Directors, officers and all relevant employees of the Group to ensure inside
information (as defined in the Listing Rules) (the “Inside Information”) of the
Group would be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The Company also has
Group internal notification policies and procedures for setting out
guidelines for identification and notification of Inside Information and
notifiable transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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Risk Management & Internal Control (Continued)

The Board, with the assistance of its internal audit department and audit
committee, has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, as set out above, in
accordance with C.2.1 of the CG Code and considered them effective and
adequate based on the reviews performed and confirmed by the
management and the risk management and internal control review reports
produced by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Reviews
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 did not reveal any
significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing of significant business, financial, compliance and operational
risks specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by the audit
committee and the independent firm of certified public accountants who
performed reviews and report to the Board at least annually would be
considered and implemented, if appropriate, as soon as possible by the
Group to further enhance the effectiveness of its risk management and
internal control policies, procedures and practices.

Further, the Board considered the changes, since the last annual review, in
the nature and extent of significant risks to the Group and the Group's
ability to respond to such changes. Please refer to pages 23 to 25 of the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” which set out the principal risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, one or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company shall have the right to deposit a written
requisition to the Board, or the secretary of the Board, specifying the
requested business to be considered and, if the Board thinks fit, the Board
will proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") for the
business specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit of a
written requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such an EGM, the
requesting shareholder(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by him (them) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him (them) by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, shareholders may lodge a notice in writing of the intention to
propose a person for election as a director and a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected at the Company's Head Office or at
the Company's Registered Office provided that the period for lodgment of
the notices required will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
where such period shall be at least 7 days.

Shareholders should note that election of a director of the Company is
subject to other relevant parts of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Listing Rules, and applicable laws in Cayman
Islands and Hong Kong.

Head Office Flats E&F, 2/F, Hop Hing Building, 9 Ping Tong
Street East, Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long, New
Territories, Hong Kong

Registered Office Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand

Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

Sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may raise their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company or may at any time send their written enquiries to the
Board by delivering it to the company secretary of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
Flats E&F, 2/F,

Hop Hing Building,

9 Ping Tong Street East,

Tong Yan San Tsuen,

Yuen Long,

New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852-2785 2681

Fax: 852-2786 2155
Email: ir@hophing.com
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Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the year 2018. A copy of the consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association has been posted on the websites
of both the HKEx and the Company.

Communication With Shareholders

The Board maintains an ongoing and transparent communication with all
shareholders and, in particular, will communicate with shareholders in
general meetings and encourage their participation. The Company will also
communicate with its shareholders by various other means, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars and
additional information on the Group's business activities and development
on the Company’s website: http://www.hophing.com. A shareholders’
communication policy of the Company has been established and posted
on the Company’s website.

Directors’/Committee Members’ Attendance
Recordsin 2018

BHE/ THEZER
Meeting attended/eligible to attend
2REES ENEES FMWzEES REZEE RREAFAE’
EEnE Name of Director Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual General
Full Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting*
BUIHITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
AfERT (EESLER Seto Gin Chung, John (Chairman of
REZREFE) the Board and of the
nomination committee) 6/6 2/2 212 /1 /1
LER(FWEESFE) Sze Tsai To, Robert (Chairman of the
remuneration committee) 5/6 2/2 2/2 NEF N/A /1
A& Shek Lai Him, Abraham 6/6 TER N/A 22 11 1/1
Bt (FERLZECTE) Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph (Chairman
of the audit committee) 6/6 22 AEA N/A TER N/A 1/1
HHTEE Non-Executive Director
MELEA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 6/6 ER N/A SEMA N/A A N/A 1/1
HITEE Executive Directors
HRBRE (TTH483) Hung Ming Kei, Marvin
(Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 AN N/A TEA N/A 11 11
EHH Wong Kwok Ying 6/6 NER N/A NER N/A NER N/A 1/1
# AATRZE—NENANBET - N\FRE # 2018 annual general meeting of the Company was held on 8 June 2018.

HFERE
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Group are mainly engaged in the operation of quick
service restaurant chain business (“QSR Business”), principally selling rice
bowl under the brand name of Yoshinoya (& #72%) and ice-cream under
the brand name of Dairy Queen (7K & £ f5), in northern part of China.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group's business, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group, the performance of the Group in the period
under review with reference to key financial performance indicators, the
particulars of important events, key relationships, the environmental
policies and performance, the compliance with laws and regulations and
indications of likely future development in the Group’s business have been
included in the "Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this
Annual Report which forms part of this report.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profits for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 75 to 170.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 28 March 2019, the
directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK0.61 cent per
share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK0.83 cent per share).
The recommended final dividend which is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") to be held on 13 June 2019 will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 20 June 2019. These financial statements do not reflect the
recommended final dividend payable.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 171 and 172. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital and shares issued in the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 34
to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Own Listed Securities
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the trustee of the Company’s
share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) adopted on 20 March
2015, paid for purchase of a total of 73,136,000 shares of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at a total
consideration of approximately HK$11,594,000. As the shares are held by
the trustee for the award of shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
and the trust deed, the shares were therefore not cancelled. Apart from the
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Seto Gin Chung, John** (Chairman)

Hung Ming Kei, Marvin* (Chief Executive Officer)
Sze Tsai To, Robert**

Shek Lai Him, Abraham**

Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph**

Lam Fung Ming, Tammy*

Wong Kwok Ying*

* Non-executive director
** Independent non-executive director
# Executive director

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association. At the
AGM, Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph and Mr. Hung
Ming Kei, Marvin will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written annual confirmation of independence from each of all independent
non-executive directors confirming that they had met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 during the year ended 31 December 2018,
and as such the Company considered them to be independent.
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EEEREX Change of Information on Directors

BIBEEMHRAUFE1351B)IE - BRARRSETIZEZ Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and updated

FHRERBRELEAFTHRBE  BRARREEY information regarding the Directors of the Company since the Company’s

BEROERNREHWOT ¢ last published interim report and up to the date of this annual report is set
out below:

KRRV E VIR TEETLEBEEE T — )\ F+ Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, an independent non-executive director of the

AZt+NHEBRTEEPIREERERR AR ZE Company, resigned as an independent non-executive director of China

NIEBMITES - Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited with effect from 24
October 2018.
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Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, aged 70, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 25 March 2016.
Mr. Seto has been appointed as a director of the Group since 25 April 2006 and is the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Seto is a director of Pacific Eagle Asset Management Limited since January 2006.
He is an independent non-executive director of MS Group Holdings Limited and Kowloon
Development Company Limited. He was the Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia)
Limited from 1982 to 2001. He was a non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited from 2000 to 2003, a council member of the Stock Exchange from 1994 to 2000 and was the
first vice chairman of the Stock Exchange from 1997 to 2000. He had been a non-executive director of
Sateri Holdings Limited, which became a listed company on the Stock Exchange on 8 December 2010,
for the period from 28 October 2010 until the conclusion of the annual general meeting on 21 May
2013. He retired as an independent non-executive director of China Everbright Limited on 17 May
2018. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from New York University, USA and has over
30 years of experience in the securities and futures industry.
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Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, aged 78, was appointed as a director of the Group on 1 June 2000 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr.
Sze is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was a partner in an international firm of accountants
with which he practiced for over 20 years. He is also an independent non-executive director of a
number of Hong Kong listed companies including Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He
resigned as an independent non-executive director of China Travel International Investment Hong
Kong Limited on 24 October 2018.
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Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, /P, aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Group on 1 January 2007 and is a member of each of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Shek graduated from the University of Sydney,
Australia with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He has been a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR
representing real estate and construction functional constituency since 2000. Currently, Mr. Shek is a
member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology, a member of the Court
and Council of The University of Hong Kong, and has been appointed as a member of the Advisory
Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) as from 1
January 2017. Mr. Shek was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 1995 and awarded Silver Bauhinia Star
in 2007 and received Gold Bauhinia Star Award in July 2013. Mr. Shek was appointed as a non-executive
director of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority with effect from 17 March 2015. He is an
independent non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong listed companies including NWS
Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, Chuang's
Consortium International Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, MTR Corporation
Limited, SJM Holdings Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited,
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Everbright Grand China Assets Limited and CSI
Properties Limited. He resigned as an independent non-executive director of Midas International
Holdings Limited as from 4 p.m. on 26 January 2018. He was an independent non-executive director of
ITC Corporation Limited (now known as PT International Development Corporation Limited) until 4
p.m. on 28 March 2017, and of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited until 10 March 2016 and of TUS
International Limited until 5 January 2017. Mr. Shek is the chairman and an independent non-executive
director of Chuang’s China Investments Limited. Mr. Shek is an independent non-executive director of
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited as from 9 January 2017. He is also the vice chairman and an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited. Mr. Shek is also an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, the manager of Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust and an independent non-executive director of Regal Portfolio Management Limited,
the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust.
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Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Board on 2 February 2016 and is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Wan is
a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Directors, the Royal Society of Arts and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wan currently serves as a vice chairperson of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre and chairperson of its finance and administration committee. Formerly,
Mr. Wan was a director of the London Court of International Arbitration and of the International
Dispute Resolution Centre in the UK for the periods from February 2012 to September 2014 and from
June 2009 to September 2014, respectively. After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant in 1978, Mr.
Wan worked for KPMG in Hong Kong from 1978 to 1987, spending a year at their London Office. In
1987, Mr. Wan joined Dickson Concepts International Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and distributes luxury goods in South East Asia, as their Group Finance Director and
was responsible for the acquisitions of S.T. Dupont, Paris in 1987 and Harvey Nichols, London in 1991.
Mr. Wan was the Chief Executive of the Harvey Nichols Group in the United Kingdom from 1992 to
2014, which was listed on the London Stock Exchange from 1996 to 2003. Mr. Wan was appointed as a
board member of the Supervisory Board of S.T. Dupont S.A. (a company listed on the Paris Bourse) in
May 1999 and he was elected the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in January 2008 until retirement
in September 2014. Mr. Wan is an independent non-executive director of A-Living Services Co., Ltd as
from 9 February 2018. Mr. Wan's professional expertise is in the areas of international tax planning,
transaction due diligence and forensic accounting. He also has gained expertise in business
turnarounds, mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance, department store retailing, restaurant
operations and the global luxury markets.
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Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy, aged 55, joined the Group in 1990 and was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 1 November 2004, and re-designated as a non-executive director on 28 June
2013. Prior to the re-designation, Ms. Lam was the Chief Operating Officer of the Group responsible for
the sales activities, manufacturing, quality assurance and product development of the Group's edible
oils business. Ms. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and Technology and a
Higher Diploma in Chemical Technology from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over 25
years’ experience in the oil and food industry. Currently, she is a director and an employee of the edible
oils group which is indirectly controlled by controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin, aged 48, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group with overall
responsibility for the business of the Group. He was appointed an executive director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group on 12 March 2012. Mr. Hung is a member of the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor's degree in Science majoring in Accounting from the
University of Southern California in the United States of America in 1992 and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Hung has over 20 years
of experience in business management and quick service restaurant operations. By virtue of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Hung is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in
the section under “Substantial Shareholders” and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares”.

BEREALE  BF9R - ARERRNEREEARAE R_ZTETF-ATHEZER
AEEEE - FELERBEGHNACEREE - REFA=THFHH - S5t RREK
B WR—ANZTEMAREER - SERR —AEBEESFEIT -

Mr. Wong Kwok Ying, aged 59, is the Company Secretary and the Group Comptroller of the Group
and was appointed as a director of the Group on 10 January 2000. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 35 years' finance, accounting and
audit experience. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked with one of the international
accounting firms in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Emoluments
Details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that were significant in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any director of the Company and the
director’'s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests in Competing Business

None of the directors of the Company had interests in other business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group's business.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the AGM is a party to any
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment other than statutory
compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or in existence during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Share options granted to directors and selected
eligible employees

The share option scheme of the Company was adopted for the purpose of
incentivizing and rewarding our directors and eligible employees who
contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. Details of the
share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements. During the year under review, 503,513,000 share options were
granted and 36,000,000 share options were vested. No share options were
exercised and no shares were issued during the year.

Award shares granted to eligible employees

The Share Award Scheme was adopted as a means to recognise the
contribution of and to provide incentives for the eligible employees. Details
of the Share Award Scheme and details of the award shares granted are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements. 38,699,120 award shares were
granted during the year ended 31 December 2018. The award shares are
subject to conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the Board in
its sole discretion.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Save for the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group, no other permitted indemnity provision
for the benefit of any director or who had been a director of the Company,
or of its subsidiaries, where applicable, is in force.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors and chief executive
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests in ordinary shares of the Company

FEROHE - FHRESEME

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BEER by cl HAEDRBET
BERER REEEE ERZEHEA Bt  REzBEAL
Percentage of
Directly and Through the Company’s
beneficially controlled Beneficiary of issued share
EEgE Name of director owned corporation atrust Total capital
AfERSD Seto Gin Chung, John 500,847 - - 500,847 0.005%
HERE Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 72,652,163 3,412,399,373 73,332,815 3,558,384,351 35.335%
e ) HE (i)
note (i) note (ii)
S Sze Tsai To, Robert 2454678 - - 2454678 0.024%
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Notes:

(i

3,412,399,373 shares were beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the
trustee of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin.

(ii) 73,332,815 shares were beneficially owned by a discretionary trust whose
discretionary beneficiaries included a company owned by Mr. Hung Ming Kei,
Marvin.

Save as disclosed above and the share options granted to the directors as
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, as at 31 December 2018,
none of the directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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TERRFRREMATRARO REER Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

PHRZEZRAE Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares
RZZE-—N\F+ZHA=+—H ZARAfENE As at 31 December 2018, the interests of substantial shareholders/other
LIBERAGERBAELAEERIEIRBCIKAERE persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, as notified to
ZrfMAracst  TBRE Hi ATRARER the Company and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
B REERNF 2 E=IT Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
REQNFREBER 2GS Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company

FBERER GXRQFASHRT

Kt B REzESE
Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary issued share

REBEH Name of shareholder Notes shares held capital

True Force Ventures Limited True Force Ventures Limited (i) 1,408,783,784 13.99%

Earn Field International Limited Earn Field International Limited (ii) 1,408,783,784 13.99%

H H Hung (2008) Limited H H Hung (2008) Limited (iii) 3,579,187,103 35.54%

HE T Hung Hak Hip, Peter (iv) 3,929,297,734 39.02%

HEZa Hung Diana Wan Ling v) 3,929,297,734 39.02%

Winner Planet Limited Winner Planet Limited (vi) 1,625,526,805 16.14%

Creative Mount Limited Creative Mount Limited (vii) 1,587,229,730 15.76%

North China Fast Food (2008) Limited North China Fast Food (2008) Limited (viii) 3,412,399,373 33.89%

Ample Great Ventures Limited Ample Great Ventures Limited (ix) 3,412,399,373 33.89%

HERA L Hung Ming Kei, Marvin (x) 3,558,384,351 35.33%

Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited  Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited (xi) 801,620,000 7.96%

Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited (xii) 801,620,000 7.96%

Cooper Lindsay William Ernest Cooper Lindsay William Ernest (xiii) 801,620,000 7.96%

Biat - Notes:

0] LTI E IR 2 EREEA (i) The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

(i) LHFTEEIROHZERFBA (i) Theregistered holder of the shares disclosed above.

@iy~ HH Hung (2008) Limited /& 166,787,730 i% f% 13 2 B &2 (i) HH Hung (2008) Limited is the registered holder of 166,787,730 shares. In
A A IS HHHung (2008) Limited B # 2 addition, H H Hung (2008) Limited directly controls more than one-third of
Predominance Limited FERX R A& FHBB =D 2 —H) the voting power at general meetings of Predominance Limited.
S ZHE o Predominance Limited #48 & A B 5E () 2 (i) Predominance Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares mentioned
Bt 2 B& 10 AN 515 TRRE A 2 594,831,805 B in Notes (i)-(i) above, and 594,831,805 shares held by certain shareholders of
DA - the Company.
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Predominance Fortune Limited ° %A B4 42 & H R
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Ample Great Ventures Limited 4 North China Fast Food
(2008) Limited .2 M — A% 5 + ifi North China Fast Food
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (Continued)

Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter is deemed to be interested in:

(@) 3,579,187,103 shares held through H H Hung (2008) Limited
mentioned in Note (i) above;

(b) 73,332,815 shares held through Fortune Blessing Limited;

(0 274,766,648 shares held through controlled corporations; and

(d) 2,011,168 shares held through Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling, Mr. Hung
Hak Hip, Peter's spouse.

Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling is deemed to be interested in 2,011,168 shares
held through a controlled corporation. Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling is the wife
of Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter and is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in (a) to (c) of Note (iv) above.

The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.
The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

North China Fast Food (2008) Limited indirectly controls more than one-third
of the voting power at general meetings of certain registered shareholders
including Winner Planet Limited, Creative Mount Limited and Predominance
Fortune Limited. The company is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Notes (vi) and (vii) above and 199,642,838 shares held by
Predominance Fortune Limited.

Ample Great Ventures Limited is the sole shareholder of North China Fast
Food (2008) Limited which is deemed to be interested in shares mentioned
in Note (viii) above.

Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin holds the entire issued share capital of Ample
Great Ventures Limited and is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Note (viii) above. He also directly and beneficially owns
72,652,163 shares. In addition, Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin is deemed to be
interested in 73,332,815 shares beneficially owned by a discretionary trust
whose discretionary beneficiaries included a company owned by him.

The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited is the investment manager of Arisaig Asia
Consumer Fund Limited and is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Note (xi) above.

Mr. Cooper Lindsay William Ernest indirectly holds one-third of the voting
power at general meetings of Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited and is
deemed to be interested in the shares mentioned in Note (xi) above.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (Continued)

Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company (Continued)
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company had not
been notified of any persons other than the directors of the Company
whose interests and share options are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” and in note 25 to the financial statements, respectively, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company, which are required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

Save for connected transactions which are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, during the year, there were no other
transactions which, in the opinion of the directors, constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that were subject to the
reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of related party transactions undertaken during the year have been
reported under note 31 to the financial statements. None of these related
party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales attributable to the Group'’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. The
percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 10.2% and 34.5%, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the directors, neither the directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and five largest suppliers during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme,
namely the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), for
the employees of the Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong who are eligible
to participate. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ salaries and charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.
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Retirement Benefit Schemes (Continued)

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. In accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer’s contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total scheme contributions
made by the Group amounted to approximately HK$106,526,000 and no
forfeited contributions were applied to reduce employer’s contributions.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
amended and restated articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Subsequent Event

Save for the recommended final dividend payable for the year ended 31
December 2018 which is subject to the approval by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM, there were no significant events after
the reporting period of the Group.

Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN
Chairman

Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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To the shareholders of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hop Hing Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 75 to 170, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for

our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRETEE

Key audit matter

BANFTNNEEFARETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI IR & E
Recognition of deferred tax assets

NA_ZE-N\F+_RA=+—0 ESKEZEEHRBEER
78 ¥ 49,900,000 7T * {5 IERBN B EE 2 15.5% ° WNEETE Al T LARE
RZBELERAEESBER - ARREBRZERTRNATREHER
0 BRF ] Re 7 S A B AR R TRAR 1 SR B Hh K A
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deferred tax assets of
HKS$49.9 million, representing 15.5% of non-current assets.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

BREMIFEED SN BRERWTIR 19 -
Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 19 to the financial
statements.

FERE

Stocks provision

NRZE—NFT+ZA=+—H  BEEEZGEERABEK
108,8000007C ' MBI EEZ 12% - BN BEXBEHFETE
BERIHEZRM  FERBRENEANFESEAEMEL
HE  EEBHEETFHTERAFELERHE -
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had stocks of HK$108.8 million,
representing 12% of current assets. As the stocks of the Group
mainly composed of food ingredients, which were subject to
expiry, the estimation of the stock provision required
management’s significant judgement in determining slow moving
stocks as these are based on forecast stock usage.

BREMIEED SN BRERMEI R 15 -
Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15 to the financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others, a review of the
management’s analysis and assumptions supporting the
probability that deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position will be recovered through taxable
income or tax planning strategies in the future. We assessed the
key management assumptions over expected future taxable
income by comparing them against both internal financial
budgetary information and external available industry information.
We also involved our tax specialists to review the tax positions of
the Group.

BPEBRFENRKTFEE L FEEERBCETEBAFGLE
BMEERMERE TERBERRBETFERMIEHE
MEREE - HAIMEERERTFEN BT & HREREE
TRl e KM MBREKFIEZ BRFERE FETEENR
A o

We assessed stock excess and obsolescence provisions by
considering the stock level against historical stock turnover days
and substantively checked to both past and subsequent sales and
usage information on selected stock samples. We also discussed
with management on any stocks with potential obsolescence
problem. We attended physical stock counts at warehouses and
stores, and performed compilation test.
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Other Information Included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.



BESEZRERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

18 M %% BLAT R

Independent Auditor’s Report

REMB BT AN BRRARENE
(&
. HESRAREGEEHEROBEED
ik o RIEFEDMMBIEE  BERET
ARFELERABOEATREY - {7
THERY BEENSEGELNELS
REE - MRAMBAFESATHEL
BIE L BERBEBRERIZEERE IR
AMBHRERTOABEE - BEAWORE
TR ARMEERRFEREER B
B 5 R E R 2 BE R B L FTERS B At
B AT RREFERBRATEH &

SETRERELE -

AHERE M RRNERIIFS A - BB
NE - BREE  UREEMBRRIE
BRRRZMEIR -

5. BEENEEAXHLINTBESE
BRER  HEENEFERE UWEHGEAHH
BREXRER - HZMAE EKREFANT
[ EEMNT  RA/BFBERAERE
Bff-

BREMEESN  RAEEZREQERTTENE
AEE - BERH  EXEAERES  BRAMAR
BT P R YRR AR B (R A B IREG ©

BfEREZZBRRIEN  FHAKRMETA
BB MR E X BRER . WRMPIEBRE A
EEAEMERRERERMBLENMERERNRE
EIE - UREERNBRT - HEAHEE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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HE—Z—\&+=-_A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —ZT—+F
2018 2017
KaE BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
EE | TURNOVER 5 2,373,954 2,218,323
FHE A Cost of sales (874,382) (809,505)
H A WA e e 558 Other income and gains, net 5 16,463 24,559
HERDHER Selling and distribution expenses (1,124,369) (1,002,908)
— M RITHRER General and administrative expenses (210,324) (188,929)
DA EE SR KRR Share of profits and losses of joint venture (432) -
KRR PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6 180,910 241,540
B A B AN Finance costs 7 (736) (942)
RR%E AR R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 180,174 240,598
5B Income tax expense 10 (57,568) (73,246)
EAFREFEEA PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
FEfR A F EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 122,606 167,352
EATFREFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ELEERER EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
HAR Basic HK1.25 B 1licents  HK1.71 /&1l cents
s Diluted HK1.24 B1licents  HK1.69 /&1l cents
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BZE—Z—N\F+=-_A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2018

—E-N\E —T—+F
2018 2017
BET T BEET I
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ZRE B F PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 122,606 167,352
H 2wl () OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
EREZEERIEE Other comprehensive income/(expense) that
BaizHtEE may be reclassified to income statement in
Wi () - subsequent periods:
MEBINETS 2 [E =R Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (26,165) 34,739
AEHMEHE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Wi, (ZH) FOR THE YEAR (26,165) 34,739
EATREFEA TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
iR FE2EmREEELE FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 96,441 202,091

76 2018 £ 3 ANNUAL REPORT




SEEEZERERAT

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ma IR R R
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—Z—N\F+=H=+—H 31 December 2018

—E-N\EF —T—tF
2018 2017
okz3 BEF T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - R MK Property, plant and equipment 13 208,449 213,476
REETLEZIRE Investment in a joint venture 14 11,185 -
REFIAE Deferred tax assets 19 49,873 44,528
ERFREREEZS Prepayments and rental deposits 20 52,355 51,618
FRBEELR Total non-current assets 321,862 309,622
nEBEE CURRENT ASSETS
5E Stocks 15 108,750 111,447
FE UG BRTE Accounts receivable 16 19,945 17,769
TENRUE -~ Re R EA Prepayments, deposits and
JE U BR T8 other receivables 20 139,210 97,960
AU B 7 18 Tax recoverable 1,336 196
HEihomEE Other financial assets 21 235,789 48019
Be MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 401,663 641,693
REBEEHATE Total current assets 906,693 917,084
nEBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEfTBRTE Accounts payable 17 128,255 153,624
HEESIRIBE R ERTE R Other payables and accrued charges 23 404,443 374,664
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank loan 18 - 10,000
FET R IR Tax payable 6,801 9,857
REAEHAEE Total current liabilities 539,499 548,145
REBEEFHR NET CURRENT ASSETS 367,194 368,939
EEABERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 689,056 678,561
FkRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 24,041 24,751
BEE NET ASSETS 665,015 653,810
s EQUITY
ZINNGTE 2 = r =N ) Equity attributable to equity holders
s of the Company
BT IR AN Issued share capital 24 1,007,043 1,007,043
& Reserves 27 (342,028) (353,233)
R TOTAL EQUITY 665,015 653,810
ALEIRF HEAE
B TTIEAE L,
SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN HUNG MING KEI, MARVIN
CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BZE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2018

ARAREREAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RERG
RETH DYv) EX g1R
BEARA  ROEER: SEORG:  ofEEr  ARRE+  RBRE  REREe  HbBker REEAr 48R
Share held
Share  under share Share-based  Exchange Capital and
Issuedshare  premium award Merger payment  fluctuation  Statutory other Retained
capital account* scheme* reserve®  reserve* reserve* reserve*  reservest profits*  Total equity
E¥Tn ¥t E¥Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn BMTn BETn ¥t B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(W) (W)
(note 24) (note 24)
RZF-\&-A-H At 1 January 2018 1,007,043 3,910,798 (30,078)  (4,857,319) 23,128 714 16,439 69,377 507,281 653,810
RERT Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 122,606 122606
FERMRE Other comprehensive expense
Zill: forthe year:
BERINER Eichange differences related to
EREE foreign operations - - - - - 26,165) - - - (26,165)
FERENEEE Total comprefensive income
for the year - - - - - (26,165) - - 122,606 96,441
R A Vesting of shares of share
award scheme - - 2,253 - (1,951) - - - (302) -
BERGEETEBEARR  Shares purchased under share award
scheme - - (11,594) - - - - - - (11,594)
DREEE 2 AR A Equity-settled share-based payments - - - - 8,155 - - - _ 8,155
“ELERIRE Final dividend for 2017 (note 11)
(i) - (s - - - - - - - B
RIE-N\E At31 December 2018
T-F=1-H 1,007,043 3,829,001 (39419)  (4,857,319) 29,332 (19,024) 16,439 69,377 629,585 665,015
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HE—Z— \&+=-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2018

ARFIRERE Al
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RERLH
RE:TE SR E5 g1k
BERE HOEER REORG AHERY  GREE  RBEEr  AeREr  EbEEe  RERN GBS
Share held
Share  under share Share-based Exchange (apitaland
Issued share premium Merger payment fluctuation Statutory other Retained
capital account* scheme* reserve™ reserve* reserve* reserve™  reserves™ profits*  Total equity
ATn  A¥Tr A%t BBt BETn BEfn AETn BT BBt BETR
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(Wize) (W)
(note 24) (note 24)
RZE-t5-A-A At 1 January 2017 1,007,043 3971055 (27,797) (4857319) 12668 (2759) 16439 69377 339929 503,797
RERH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 167352 167352
FEEfRE Other comprehensive income
WA for the year
BERINER Exchange differences related to
LERER foreign operations - - - - - 3739 = = = 3739
TERENREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 34739 - - 167352 202,091
BEROEETEBEARR  Shares purchased under share award
scheme - - (2281) - - - - - - (2281)
IRERE 2 ARG Equity-settled share-based payments - - - - 10460 - - - - 10460
“E-NERERS Final dividend for 2016 (note 11)
(Hitn) - (60257) - - - - - - - (60257)
RZE-t%F At 31 December 2017
T-F=1-H 1,007,043 3910798 (30078) (4857319) 5128 7141 16439 69377 507,281 653810

@ ZERBRBBEGAVBEMARANFEEZESTH
FE 15 342,028,000 7T (=T —+4F : 7#1#353,233,000

JT) °

2 AHREEEN T —EWERFMHRHBARS
BESFEBEIERERAF ([SHERE]) IR ERKA
7515 4,919,843,000 7T (BN (B A8 B8 & 7451 4,964,232,000

TEHIR A B

R & /R f-} Queen Board Limited K B &2

A B E FE 44,389,000 7T ) B () & B R B AR AN
5 363,000 7T R IR 1 i (B S 14 62,161,000 T 2 B 3 ©

£ B E ARLAME ([FE]) AR - 7 B
R ARBINHB AR S EBERE A TR GG
(T AT FEBE) 2 10% @B = AT RH
BES BACHBESZEHEINSEBEME
Rzs50% - BIRBERTBERN - ATREES
A AR SR A F BRSO M E A o ARim -
RBAEEREESER  BEE&SRSONARETET
&R Z 50% °

o BARHMFEEIESBEFENSESHESLY

BAHRE ©

##

i

These reserve accounts comprise the reserves in debit balance of
HK$342,028,000 (2017: HK$353,233,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Merger reserve represents the excess of investment cost in a subsidiary, Hop
Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited (“Hop Hing Fast Food”), of
HK$4,919,843,000 (being the total consideration of HK$4,964,232,000 reduced
by the loans of HK$44,389,000 owed by Hop Hing Fast Food to Queen Board
Limited and its associates) over the share capital and share premium of Hop
Hing Fast Food of HK$363,000 and HK$62,161,000, respectively, arose from
the acquisition in 2012.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), the Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting
any losses of prior years) to the statutory reserve fund. When the balance of
the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of each entity’s registered capital, any
further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to
offset losses of prior years or to increase the registered capital. However, such
balance of the statutory reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum of
50% of the registered capital after such usage.

Capital and other reserves mainly represent the capital reserve arising from
group reorganisation in prior years.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BZE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2018

—E-N\E —T—+F
2018 2017
HtaF BET T BT IT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBK2 CASH FLOWS FROM
RERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 5 AT A Profit before tax 180,174 240,598
FATIEE EL A - Adjustments for:
MBI A Interest income 5 (8,508) (8,581)
Rl A Finance costs 736 942
e Depreciation 6 99,151 97,147
FENS ARIERE Write-back of impairment of
£ [l accounts receivable 6 - (1,702)
W - WERFEER Impairment of items of property, plant
IE and equipment 6 5,906 1,477
HE TEmE - BMEK& Loss on disposal/write-off of items of
RBIEE 2 EEFE property, plant and equipment, net 6 9,485 8,271
HEtemEE A FERES Fair value gain on other financial assets (6,674) -
DEEERE 2 ENREE Share of profits and losses of joint venture 432 =
VARSCHE 45 8 2 LA D Equity-settled shared-based
Y RFEX payment expenses 6 8,155 10,460
288,857 348,612
FERLD, (&) Decrease/(increase) in stocks 2,697 (16,689)
JEUBRIB R A (3 h0) Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable (2,176) (7,981)
AR - e R EAM Increase in prepayments, deposits and other
FE UG BR TH 3% receivables (41,987) (33,572)
FERHBRIEIE AN CRi ) Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (25,369) 35,202
H A FERTBRIE K FESTE AN Increase in other payables and accrued charges 29,779 60,780
REEBAS2IRE Cash generated from operations 251,801 386,352
B & Interest received 8,508 8,581
REFBHEH Hong Kong profits tax refunded 1,065 847
288N R IE Overseas tax paid (71,113) (81,255)
KBRS VIS ME/FE  Net cash flows from operating activities 190,261 314,525
RETHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEME  BENKE Purchases of items of property, plant
I8 B and equipment (120,720) (116,754)
REEAR RN =8 A A £ Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
EIHA 2 EHATF R original maturity of more than three months
S (38 40) when acquired 167,679 (89,745)
BEEMEmEE Purchase of other financial assets (181,096) (48,019)
MEEREITE Capital contribution to a joint venture (11,498) -
KEETHMEZIRNESMEFE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (145,635) (254,518)
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HE—Z— \&+=-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2018

—E-N\E —T—+F
2018 2017
Biat BET T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
REEE 2 CASH FLOWS FROM
HERE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ETENE A Finance costs paid (736) (942)
BARE Dividends paid (81,797) (60,257)
RIBR D 2B AT 8188 AN (D Shares purchased under share award scheme (11,594) (2,281)
BEIRTTER Repayment of a bank loan (10,000) -
BEESHREZIHESMEFER  Net cash flows used in financing activities (104,127) (63,480)
REeERASEEYRD FHE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (59,501) (3,473)
RENZREMREEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 381,189 366,327
E R EF) B R Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net (12,850) 18,335
REZZHESRREE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
EY OF YEAR 308,838 381,189
ReRASZEYER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
D CASH EQUIVALENTS
RE AR EATEZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
B RIRSEEY consolidated statement of financial position 401,663 641,693
B RBARRSIN=EAH Less: Time deposits with original maturity of
VA £ 2 H 2 TE BifE K more than three months when
acquired 22 (92,825) (260,504)
HERERERMIZRS Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
RIS ZEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 308,838 381,189
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1.

2.1

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 1 August 2007. The registered office address of
the Company is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business
of the Company is located at Flats E & F, 2/F., Hop Hing Building, 9
Ping Tong Street East, Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. There
was no significant change in the principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year, which mainly consisted
of the operation of quick service restaurants (“QSR") business under
the brand names of Yoshinoya and Dairy Queen in northern part of
China.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
other financial assets which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Income statement and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the
income statement. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40
HK(FRIO)-Int 22

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration
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Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Except for the amendments to HKAS 40 and HKFRS 4, and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group's financial statements, the nature and the
impact of the new and revised HKFRSs, are described below:
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any cash-settled share-
based payment transactions and has no share-based payment
transactions with net settlement features for withholding tax.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting.

There is no transition adjustments related to equity applicable
to the Group at 1 January 2018. The comparative information
was not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS
30.
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22 S BERBEEZ2#E (Z) 2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (& (b) (Continued)
SR EE Classification and measurement
AN E RS8B40 B 7S B 15 s &5 2E Rl 58 The following information sets out the impacts of adopting
OB B FEUR R 7 B2 o HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position.
BB e RSB NEMSHEER A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS
B R R IS 0% IE | 2 WA AR 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January
—E-N\E—RA—BoYENT: 2018 is as follows:
=Rl EoE BEMBHREER
E395HE EBER BoitE
HKAS 39 measurement (% HKFRS 9 measurement
Ehl 28 E¥SE fREFR) Hitr Ex Ehl
Expected
Re- credit
Category Amount classification  loss (“ECL") Other Amount Category
fifet AETT  AETr  A%Tn A%t BETx
Note HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
SREE Financial assets
A HERE Avalable-for-sale investments () AFS' 48019 (48019) - - - NATEE
FRBHEMATFEAE  Finandial assets at fair value
LEBEE through profit or loss () NATER - 48019 - 48019 FVPL
JEWBRIA Accounts receivable L&R? 17,769 - - - 17769 ACt
STATBNFUE & R Finandal assets included in
HiREWERE 2 prepayments, deposits and
SREE other receivables L&R 76331 - - - 76,331 AC
BERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents L&R 641,693 - - - 641693 AC
783812 - - - 7833812
SRER Financial liabilities
[ERERIE Accounts payable AC 153,624 - - - 153,624 AC
STAEMENEER  Financial liabilities included in
BT ERZ&RmARE  otherpayables and accruals AC 165,630 - - - 165,630 AC
SERTER Interest-bearing bank loan AC 10,000 - - - 10,000 AC
329,254 - - - 329254

AFS: A] it £ 48 &

AFS: Available-for-sale investments

1 1

2 L&R: B R I FE W K18 2 L&R: Loans and receivables

: FPL B RBER A FEAR S RAE 3 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2 ACIEEHNAANRZ S REES SR 4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost
afE

BtaE - Note:

0} REEDHEAMDEAAIEREERE () The Group has classified its unlisted investments previously
ZIEEMTRE  ENoBEAERER classified as available-for-sale investments as financial assets
BRATFHEFEZEMEE  REEZ measured at fair value through profit or loss as these non-
SIHERBERETBRB BB RELE equity investments did not pass the contractual cash flow
Bl oSk 2 & 4R & MEFFECA - characteristics test in HKFRS 9.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(c)

Impairment

There was no significant impact for replacing the aggregate
opening impairment allowance under HKAS 39 with ECL
allowances under HKFRS 9 on the financial assets as at 1
January 2018

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in
notes 5 and 23 to the financial statements. As a result of the
application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in note
24 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 January 2018

The Group is in the business of operation of quick service
restaurants ("QSR"). Revenue from the operation of QSR
business is recognised at the point in time when the products
are delivered to the customers. The Group has concluded that
the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have an impact on the
timing of revenue recognition.

There is no effect on the initial application of HKFRS 15 to the
opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January 2018. The
comparative information was not restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 18 and related interpretations.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(Continued)

(c)

(i)

Loyalty point programme

The Group operates a loyalty point programme, which
allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products. The points can be redeemed for the
free products or cash coupon. Prior to the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the loyalty programme offered by the Group
resulted in the allocation of a portion of the transaction
price to the loyalty programme using the fair value of
points issued and recognition of the deferred revenue
in relation to points issued but not yet redeemed or
expired. The Group concluded that under HKFRS 15 the
loyalty points give rise to a separate performance
obligation because they provide a material right to the
customer and allocated a portion of the transaction
price to the loyalty points awarded to customers based
on the relative stand-alone selling price.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
the deferred revenue as other payables. Under HKFRS
15, the amount is classified as contract liabilities which is
included in other payables and accrued charges.
Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified HK$3,232,000 from other payables to
contract liabilities at 1 January 2018 in relation to
deferred revenue related to this loyalty point
programme.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, HK$3,066,000
was reclassified from other payables to contract
liabilities in relation to deferred revenue related to this
loyalty point programme.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(Continued)

(i) Consideration received from customers in advance
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as
other payables. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified
as contract liabilities which are included in other
payables and accrued charges.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified HK$4,267,000 from other payables to
contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance as at
1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, HK$3,617,000
was reclassified from other payables to contract
liabilities in relation to the consideration received from
customers in advance for the sale of products.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the
date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation has had no
impact on the Group'’s financial statements as the Group'’s
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange rate
applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided
in the interpretation.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation'

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKFRS 10 and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to Definition of Material?

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
HKAS 19

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures'

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-
use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to
a class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-
use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the
standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019 and will not
restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, at 31
December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately HK$1,075,540,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16,
certain amounts included therein may need to be recognised as
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The right-of-use asset will
be measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial applicable. The Group plans to use the
exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose lease
terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial applicable. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amount of new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to be
recognised arising from operating lease commitments upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking account into the exemption of
short-term and low value leases, some commitments related to
arrangements that are not qualified as leases under HKFRS 16 and
the effects of discounting.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is
material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9
only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such
long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will assess
its business model for such long-term interests based on the facts
and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using the transitional
requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends to apply
the relief from restating comparative information for prior periods
upon adoption of the amendments.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group'’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that any exists.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
joint venture is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of joint venture is included as part of the Group’s
investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the events of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the income statement as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than stocks,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity; and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33.33%

20% to 33.33%

Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 33.33%

Motor vehicles and other equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the income statement
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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(Continued)

Financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the income statement in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income statement as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.
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(Continued)
Financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement
— is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable, other
payables, accrued charges and interest-bearing bank loans.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired or issued to the
trustee of the Company’s share award scheme and held by the
Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost. No
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside the income statement is recognised
outside the income statement, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale from QSR business
Revenue from the operation of QSR business is recognised at the
point in time when the products are delivered to the customers.

Otherincome

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) income from the operation of QSR business, when catering
services have been provided to customers;

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
rate method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(i)  dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using an
appropriate pricing model, further details of which are given in notes
25 and 26 to the financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

2018 £ #§ ANNUAL REPORT 119



SHREEZRERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

I B 5 3 R MY

24

120

TREHBRBME(E)

BEREF (&)

KR 1S (&)

& AR E 2 EHKEE - BIRFEE R
AR B HIR B R IR - T AR 2 (A 1) R FERR
ZRXIEL AR - LB BEERERE
AEE Y EBIEHHBE RN Z IR B IR 2T
[ 22@ - A ERTHEBREEEHL
RE YR BHEE/SE R KR - A
EREH < 2R M ¥ R - O RIER R AT
REER 2B FRH

SAEERANE - RITEBRE RN ZE
ZEEE R R R AR INR D EE -

EBBHRY
AEERBREBEOANBEEFREERE
BEREEHFFR -RETHERT  RBEH
REEBRARERZBEHBRPA THEE - 2
BERT—FEER RBEHR - AKH
ERAFEEEFARGEZAFTRY A
HIR RS AT B BT HR

BIKEFIETE]

AEERAER2HEZ BERAERHUIE
REAMEtE - Bt EREE(RER
tEl) - FER 2 HRDRERHF S 2B
Foat 8 - WK R oR i & 51 &) 2 A R SR i
ABEBSERTHR -  BESHEZEETD
EAKECEENHIRBYERESRKA -
ZRER 18 51 58 TR 2 R B 2 1R = AR iR
HEHBREEME -

W\

AEERTEALEEZHEBAREREEAES
MEEMRAF LM 2P RERSETE - ZF
MBARERINFEZETADLAHRR
BRASFEMELHER - BAERFARREFR
RASFERANEL HRFRBas R P HEk -

2018 £ 3 ANNUAL REPORT

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share awards is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and
carried forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme, namely, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), for those employees who are eligible to participate.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or the income statement is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or the income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not been
in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows, which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level of
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in cash flow projections, could have a material effect on
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in the production and provision of services, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use
of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on
the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are shorter than previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Details of the deferred tax assets are
contained in note 19 to the financial statements.

Provision for slow-moving stocks and net realisable value of stocks
Management reviews the ageing analysis of stocks of the Group at
the end of each reporting period, and make provisions for slow-
moving stock items if needed. Net realisable value of stocks is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. The carrying amount of stocks at 31 December 2018
was HK$108,750,000 (2017: HK$111,447,000). Further details are
contained in note 15 to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under the share option scheme is
determined using the binomial model. The significant inputs in
determining the fair values include the weighted average share price
at the grant date, exercise price, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield,
expected volatility, expected life of options, and exit rate of directors
and staff. Further details are given in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Operating Segment Information

The Group’s primary operating segment is the QSR business. In
addition, the QSR business’ revenue and non-current assets, other
than deferred tax assets, are predominantly attributable to a single
geographical region, which is the People’s Republic of China.
Therefore, no analysis by geographical region is presented.
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5. BEHUREMBRARKGZFRE 5. Turnover and Other Income and Gains, Net

B REMIA KRGS FRESNT R - An analysis of turnover and other income and gains, net is as follows:
—E-N\E —EFE—tF
2018 2017
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEEE—EFFEOKE Turnover — revenue from contracts with
customers
NE—FIHEEER Sale of products, at a point in time 2,373,954 2,218,323
EFEaNWE Revenue from contracts with customers
() DR ER (i) Disaggregated revenue information
B2 \K+=-A=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2018
BT T
HKS$'000
o ke Brands
FHX Yoshinoya 2,018,670
KEER Dairy Queen 249,765
HAtb Others 105,519
2,373,954
& T 5 Geographical markets
bR — K= —AdbE & e E Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province Metropolitan Region 1,759,618
ES1AU Northern China®” 614,336
2,373,954
o BIEEE  ARH - BERINEMNE ° o Including Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Heilongjiang and Jilin.
FNFER 2 E 5 & A% 7,449,000 TT AT Sales of products of HK$7,449,000 recognised during the year
ABERINzEHNEE- was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the

reporting period.
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5.

Turnover and Other Income and Gains, Net
(Continued)

EFEE#HWNE(E) Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)
(i) BRIEME (i) Performance obligations
SHE & m Sale of goods
AEEEREHIELRGTETYAE The Group sells goods directly to customers via stores and
ERBESHEEER BHEITRERR online food order platform. The performance obligation is
MERRER RSZIEREREEER satisfied when the products are delivered to the customers.
A7 BN B EA S 5 o Y RGER T ATR & 50 F Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the
AR ERRTFEEE - customers purchase the goods. The payment is usually settled
in cash or using online payment platform.
—E-N\F T t5F
2018 2017
BETT BT TT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Htt AR Wz 358 Other income and gains, net
FEUA Interest income 8,508 8,581
EmemEEA T ERS Fair value gain on other financial assets 6,674 =
PE H =855 Foreign exchange differences, net (9,064) 7,874
e Compensation 2,758 2,354
BB & * Government grant* 5,433 4269
Hith Others 2,154 1,481
16,463 24,559

* T e B 2 46 ot AN 5= B B S E 1T Y
E TR BN 7T BUF R A 4 B © 20
HEE 98 T 48 B 22 A0 4F [ PO I 8 RS
R

Government grants represent the subsidies received from the
local government for the Group's business activities carried out
locally. There were no unfulfilled conditions during the year in
which they were recognised.
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6. Profit From Operating Activities

The Group's profit from operating activities is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):
—E-NF —E—+F
2018 2017
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
D 3, 7= RE)5 5 Foreign exchange differences, net 9,064 (7,874)
BEEFEZEEKA Direct cost of stocks sold* 796,664 742,527
HE s E - WME R EE Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property,
BB 218 F5E plant and equipment, net 9,485 8,271
EERAFZ (B Employee benefit expenses
WiEsInEEE) (including directors’ emoluments in note 8):
T& NE Wages and salaries 431,374 391,160
RIRE T EIH F Pension scheme contributions** 106,526 97,875
ARG R A5 & 7 LARR {7 S A+t Equity-settled share-based payments 8,155 10,460
546,055 499,495
e Depreciation 99,151 97,147
Yz - WE &R EEE Impairment of items of property, plant
VERIE] and equipment 5,906 1477
R ERIBRE Write-back of impairment of accounts
B [m] *x receivable*** - (1,702)
KEMREE FTHES N Lease payments under operating leases:
— &ARHEEN K — Minimum lease payments 277,494 257,985
— RS — Contingent rents 40,013 38,278
Z SR BN Auditor’s remuneration 2,650 2,500
NEN =FEE Fair value gain, net
— BERBERE A TEAR — investments at fair value through
ZI"E profit or loss (6,674) -
BiteE - Notes:
* BEEFEZHEKRABR T ALZABRRAN e Direct cost of stocks sold is included in “Cost of sales” in the

*¥

[HERA] -
RZZ—NF+ZA=+—0 AEEWE
DR YA TR AT A PARL R 2R E ) R SRR R &
AEIMR(ZT L5 |) -

EEEBERERR S AGaRER 2 —
RETHBEMR] -

2018 £ 3 ANNUAL REPORT

consolidated income statement.

** At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its future contributions to the pension schemes in
future years (2017: Nil).

*** Write-back of impairment of accounts receivable was included in
“General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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7. BERAR 7. Finance Costs
REKADHTIT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E-N\E —E—tF
2018 2017
BET T ST IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SRITE A B Interest on bank loans 52 134
RITRIE B R A Bank financing charges and others 684 808
736 942
8. EERTTHARME 8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

RAFEREETHRA - T8 RBRDE
383(1)@) ~ (b) QR OIER AR (HEEFA
=@ BB KRG 2 B0 EE < EE R AT IR E N
T

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,
are as follows:

“E-0\F
2018
o 2% BMERL/® ARELEZ Bire
e RENNE RREHEA  ARGRG  HEMS  He#R
Salaries, Discretionary/
allowances performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses payment contributions remuneration
A¥Tn  EMTn BB A¥Tn  E¥Tn B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) BUFHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
AR Seto Gin Chung, John 330 - - 309 - 639
LER Sze Tsai To, Robert 275 - - 309 - 584
R Shek Lai Him, Abraham 220 - - 309 - 529
= Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph 275 - - 309 - 584
1,100 - - 1,236 - 2,336
(b) BTESK (b) Executive directors and
FHiTES non-executive director
H1ES: Executive directors;
e Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 2,000 3214 - - - 5,214
BER Wong kwok Ying - 1,898 - (316) 152 1,734
2,000 5112 - (316) 152 6,948
FHTES: Non-executive director:
B Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 30 - - - - 30
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8. BEERITHHARME (&) 8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)
“E-tF
2017
ge2 BERA/E NRELE it/ ¥
we  RENIE RREOTEL  URHZA STl i Ey
Salaries,  Discretionary/
alowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits relasted  share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses payment  contributions  remuneration
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
() BYFHTEZ  (a) Independentnon-executive directors
AlfERT Seto Gin Chung, John 330 - - _ _ 330
LER Sze Tsai To, Robert 275 - - - - 275
EHS Wong Yu Hong, Philip 9 - - - . 9
ok Cheung Wing Yui, Edward 178 = - - _ 178
Rk Shek Lai Him, Abraham 0 - - - - 0
Jndif= Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph 29 - - = - 239
1334 - - - - 1334
b) BTEER (b) Executive directors and
FHTES non-executive director
#EF Executive directors:
P Hung Ming Kei, Manvin 2000 3155 - - - 5,155
EHR Wong Kiwok Ying - 189 - 133 152 3373
2000 5053 - 1323 152 8528
FHTES Non-executive director:
H/ELEA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 30 : _ _ _ 30

FAMBEESFHITRAM B RELR TN
BRI S 25 -

ETEFEHAEHAREREHEREERBR

o E—THBERN M HRARMEES -

- A
A& =T

B Z AFEDNFBHANEERRER -
YRFEEBHETE > Mat AMBHRR 2
NEFALXBBEZESERITRAEHMEA -
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There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

Certain directors were granted share options in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are set out in note 25
to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which is
being recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amounts included in
the financial statements are included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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FEBRSHES 9. Five Highest Paid Employees
RAFERELR=%HES (BEMNEEHR L The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid employees,
i) uESZIﬁ%Ei(_% +E:WB)) 2 including two (2017: two) directors whose emoluments are set out

AT : in note 8 above, for the year are as follows:

—E-N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
e R MREMBE Salaries, allowances and other emoluments 10,425 10,027
BB TEAT B R IR B S TEAT Discretionary/performance related bonuses 3,136 2,613
J//{ AR 45 & 7 PARR D 2 A~ Equity-settled share-based payments (829) 5,296
RIREFTEIE R Pension scheme contributions 487 451
13,219 18,387

it e TR The above emoluments are analysed as follows:

EEEHE
Number of employees

—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
7B ¥4 1,500,001 T2 A% 2,000,000 HKS1,500,001 to HKS$2,000,000 2 =
7B #£ 2,000,001 TTE A% 2,500,000 7T HKS$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 =
7B #£ 2,500,001 T & 7B %5 3,000,000 7T HKS$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1
743,000,001 T E 7B 5 3,500,0007T  HKS$3,000,001 to HKS3,500,000 - 2
755 3,500,001 7T 2785 4,000,000 HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 1
755 4,500,001 7T 28 #5 5,000,000 HK$S4,500,001 to HKS5,000,000 - =
75 ¥4 5,000,001 72 A% 5,500,000 7 HKS$5,000,001 to HKS5,500,000 1 1
5 5

RFEENMFTHRAHNABRSHFNESR
?MMKE B AR A T R BRI - BREE

BEEN I B BKRM L2 AR EE R -

s
EA%:'

BREZATEDRELADEE  2RE
BHRAEBSERTER - MRANFREENH

BRI 2 CHECFA LN AR RS HES

MEemEBEERA -

Certain five highest paid employees who are neither directors nor
chief executives have been granted with share options in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are included in
the disclosures in note 25 to the financial statements. The fair values
of such options, which have been recognised in the income
statement over the vesting period, were determined as at the date
of grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for
the current year have been included in the above disclosure of the
five highest paid employees’ remuneration.

2018 £ #§ ANNUAL REPORT 131



SHREEZRERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

I B 5 3 R MY

10‘

132

gy
EBFBRIBIEFNERBEE 2 BT E
SR AR T R 165% ( — B —+4F : 165%)
ER S - bR ERFEN 2 RIE %
REBRGLER A ER 2 BARENHE o

AEERFEA ML E 2 M B AR F AR
FRATBOEMA 25%F AP BRI BRAEH -
HP -—RUEEFREXEBONBRAANR_-F
—NEER_ZF-LFEERLRBEEMS
TR R AR o

AERREHRHNEEAXIEOMT

10. Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

The PRC corporate income tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China during the year was 25% on their
taxable profits. One of the subsidiaries engaging in agricultural
business was entitled to exemption from the standard income tax
rate in 2018 and 2017.

The major components of the income tax expense for the year are as

follows:

—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BER — BB Current — Hong Kong
REF M Charge for the year 515 288
T FEREBTE Underprovision in prior years 181 5
696 293

BUER — H 3 [= Current — Elsewhere

ARELH Charge for the year 57,875 67,874
NEEEREBNR,(BB2afM#)  Under/(over) provision in prior years (803) 3,793
57,072 71,667
EERLIA (M et 19) Deferred (note 19) (200) 1,286
ARFEEEHT a5 Total income tax charge for the year 57,568 73,246
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10. FRISHi (&)
BARNRRERIBHHBRARMERK, A
JERER 2R TE R (R 16.5% 2 25%) FTat & iE
FARA B B Bi& F 2 B T8 S () B 4 B BR R 2R AT

10. Income Tax (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rates, ranging from 16.5% to 25%, for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its

B FRES HEERAT ¢ subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:
—E-NF —E—tF
2018 2017
BET T BT IT
HK$’000 HKS'000
B 258 A1 g A Profit before tax 180,174 240,598
RERMRTE 2 FIE Tax at the applicable tax rate 29,729 39,699
Hih e AR TR R 7 2 Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdiction 14,960 18,813
BEZRHWA Income not subject to tax (831) (3,792)
P FHEFIE 2 A Expenses not deductible for tax 5,646 5,205
NFEEERERN R, (BBEEEE) Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years (622) 3,798
RS B A B B A | A 5k Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
Yo A U FE AN TR 2 R profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 7,374 8,800
RIERT S EE Tax losses not recognised 1,535 1,008
B8 AR IEERE Unrecognised tax losses utilised (223) (285)
BMAEB BRI RAE 2B Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 57,568 73,246
1. BE 11. Dividends
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
RAFEAZ TS Dividends paid during the year:
—E—tHF 2 RERE Final dividend for 2017
— BREBR083 AL — HK0.83 cent (2016: HK0.62 cent)
(ZZ—75%F : 062781l)* per ordinary share* 81,797 60,257
BORAREAAR S, ¢ Proposed final dividend:
FRE@AR 061 B HK0.61 cent (2017: HK0.83 cent)
—E—+F :083781l) per ordinary share 61,430 83,585

AREFHIR AR RIS W F AR B RRR EE
BRBEREGHRE - BRI ERBRE
R RS, o

* RBE_T-N\F+_A=1t—"HLFER
iz —E—tF 2 RARSIERBEET
ERRASN 2B - N EER D R E
AT XFEAPTREFRS °

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the proposed final
dividend payable.

* Final dividend for 2017 paid during the year ended 31 December 2018
represented the dividends paid for the issued ordinary shares,
excluding treasury shares held by the trustee under the share award
scheme.
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12. A RFREFEABREERER

(a)

(b)

BRELRZER
BRERAFTHREF AR A G RERS
B AELERE 5 FE 122,606,000 7C( =
T—+F : BE#167,3520007T ) M FEA
B BT E AR 2 MNHEF19209,815,305,745
ﬂ(:?@—tﬁ © 9,812,206,150 i) 5t &

I TR LA R BB IR AR A Rl AR (5 22 B
ﬁéﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬂﬁ%{ﬁ 313,186,867 J& (=
T— 4 : 259487400 %) °

%H"E&%&%U

HE_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—HLHF
& SRESERTF HREFARAR R
ERA AL ERE = 57 122,606,000

TRBHETEERZ NEFHH
9925254290 i 5t & - Wt A BB E

”?& £ 7 I3 A% 109,948,545 A T LA
BEFANT

12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$122,606,000 (2017: HK$167,352,000),
and the weighted average number of 9,815,305,745 (2017:
9,812,206,150) ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the number of shares of 313,186,867 (2017:
259,487,400) held under the share award scheme of the
Company.

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share is based on the consolidated profit
for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$122,606,000 and the weighted average number of
9,925,254,290 ordinary shares in issue after adjusting for the
effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares of 109,948,545
calculated as follows:

—E-N\E —EFE—tF
2018 2017
BE¥T T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
AR AIREREE A Consolidated profit attributable to equity
JEIRARE & Fl holders of the Company 122,606 167,352
RGEE
Number of shares
B’ Shares —E-NE — 4
2018 2017
R EEREARRNZ Weighted average number of ordinary
FARBBTEARK shares in issue during the year used in
INHEF 52K the basic earnings per share calculation 9,815,305,745 9,812,206,150
BEo e — TR Effect of dilution — weighted average
INEEFHE number of ordinary shares:
& 17 22 8 Share awards 93,283,580 71,989,156
R Share options 16,664,965 38,005,244
9,925,254,290 9,922,200,550
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13. Y% BERRE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment

RER HE- BEXRE

Hiiskm RESEWEEE e
Motor Furniture,
vehicles fixtures
and other  and leasehold
equipment improvements Total
BT T BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
—ZE—-NF+=HA=+—H 31December2018
% NE Cost:
R=ZE—N\FE—H—H At 1 January 2018 385,329 599,847 985,176
NE Additions 44,707 76,013 120,720
&g Disposals/write-off (30,088) (54,576) (84,664)
DE Exchange realignment (20,310) (31,595) (51,905)
R-ZT—\F At 31 December 2018
+=—A=+—H 379,638 589,689 969,327
ZETER Accumulated depreciation and
WA : impairment:
RZZE—-—NF—H—H At 1 January 2018 282,586 489,114 771,700
PN = Provided during the year 27,063 72,088 99,151
HE s Disposals/write-off (24,876) (50,303) (75,179)
BB Provision for impairment - 5,906 5,906
PE 7 A2 Exchange realignment (14,569) (26,131) (40,700)
RZZE—N\EF At 31 December 2018
+—A=+—8H 270,204 490,674 760,878
BREVFE Net book value:
RZZE—)\F At 31 December 2018
+=ZRA=+—8 109,434 99,015 208,449
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

RER HE BERE

HEmEfl REEMEEE 5T
Motor Furniture,
vehicles fixtures
and other and leasehold
equipment improvements Total
BETIT BT BEETIT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
—Z—+tH+=-H=+—H 31December2017
A Cost:
RZE—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 345,808 498,331 844,139
NE Additions 37,886 78,868 116,754
HE Disposals/write-off (25,036) (17,563) (42,599)
DE 5, 2 Exchange realignment 26,671 40,211 66,382
RZZE—LF At 31 December 2017
+=—A=+—H 385,329 599,847 985,176
ZETER Accumulated depreciation and
WA : impairment:
RZZE—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 252,495 402,737 655,232
TN B Provided during the year 32,494 64,653 97,147
HE s Disposals/write-off (21,944) (12,384) (34,328)
BB Provision for impairment - 1477 1477
FE i, %K Exchange realignment 19,541 32,631 52,172
R-T—+F At 31 December 2017
+=—A=+—8 282,586 489,114 771,700
BREFE Net book value:
N+ At 31 December 2017
+—-—A=+—H 102,743 110,733 213,476
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14. Investment in a Joint Venture

—E-N\E ZE—+F
2018 2017
BE¥T T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
PMEFEE Share of net assets 11,185 =
REBEGEMRFEZFBEROT : Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:
Place of Percentage of
Particularsof  registration ownership  Principal
Name capital held and business interest  activities
A EERFE HEMREREH RERBAL TETEH
REGEEFHERREBRAA RMB10,200,000  PRC/Mainland China 51%  Fastfood restaurant
operation
AR 1020000070 B/ HERM TEREE

AR ERNRRRESA -

TRINFAKERLEEZERALTEKRH

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

The following table illustrates the financial information of

the Group's

W5 ER} joint venture that is not individually material:
—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
DEEETEARFEE Share of the joint venture's loss for the year (432) -
MMEEEEEEHEEEERE Share of the joint venture’s total
comprehensive expense (432) -
AEFEREELEZERE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
REAE investment in the joint venture 11,185 =
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15. & 15. Stocks

—E-N\EF —E—+F
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
R Raw materials 91,314 94,559
SHAE M@ Consumables 17,436 16,388
108,750 111,447

16. FEUNERIE 16. Accounts Receivable
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
BET T BEET I
HK$’000 HKS$'000
JfE U BR T8 Accounts receivable 19,945 17,769
B ORE Less: impairment - -
19,945 17,769

AEBsREEMTIENRSETHE - K
SEREXBZEREREIZERKAABE
EHl0 AAZES LA LT e REHERD
IR - BEIRGRE AT EEE ML ERN -

RBEEHL  REXZELMNREREER
2 EWERIB 2 BRI AT AN T -

The Group’s QSR products are mainly sold on a cash basis. Accounts
receivable of the Group’s QSR business were mainly due from
shopping malls and internet platform service providers with credit
terms within 60 days. The overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the transaction date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

BET T BT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

— @A/ Within 1 month 19,655 17,231
—Z—{EA 1 to 2 months 290 538
19,945 17,769
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16. FEUWBRIE (/&)

16. Accounts Receivable (Continued)

FEYRTRERRR B EEHNT

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

—E2-N\F —E—

2018 2017

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

R—A At January - 1646
R ER D Write-back of impairment - (1,702)
B 5, 5 B Exchange realignment - 56
R+ZH=+—H At 31 December - _

BE-_F - /\F+-A=+—HLF
EEBMBRELEREIRE N 2
(=l
AEECEREEUBRELNFEORREL
AL R IR RS S A IR E - B %A
REFSLATE R A 2 AR R -
RABEBEEEE  BRREDES ERE
ERBREAERANBENE - AEEEE
BHEEERENEBESERERHAE
HEEREEAE - R-ZF—NF+ A
=+—B - ARBEEERERZBRER
REH - BTHBRASRTRBACEER
it -

BE-Z—+tHF+=-A=+—HLHF
EEBEERFE39RE N 2RE
UWTAR-E—tF+_A=1+—HBRER
7@ 51 %E Rl 25 39 57 47 AR & 30 £ (i Bl 5k 2L [7) Ak
B2 EWERTE Z BRER D AT :

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018

The Group has applied the simplified approach to provide
impairment of ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for all accounts receivable. To
measure the ECLs, accounts receivable have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The Group
considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward-looking
information in calculating the expected credit loss rate. As at 31
December 2018, the Group estimated that the expected loss rate of
accounts receivable is minimal and no ECL allowance in respect of
these balances is made.

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
that were not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
under HKAS 39 is as follows:

ZE—+tF
2017
BT T
HK$'000

BE s HA IR B
#HI60 BN

RIE A B ARRAE 2 FE M RR TR TS ST B B 4
IR Z AEBETREHABR -

Neither past due nor impaired 17,231
Within 60 days past due 538

17,769

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
number of diversified debtors for whom there was no recent history
of default.
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17. E{BRE

17. Accounts Payable

NIRE AR - RIBFFNE B 2 B BRTE 2 BR S An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of the
DT ¢ reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:
—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEA R~ 2 60 H Current and less than 60 days 119,344 140,275
i 60 H Over 60 days 8,911 13,349
128,255 153,624
ERERIERGTE  —RNF7EBEZE0RZ The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
EEHRNEE - settled within credit terms of 7 to 90 days.
18. ST ERITER 18. Interest-Bearing Bank Loan
—E-N\F —TtF
2018 2017
BUERZ ) BETT  BUENE 55 BETT
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum Maturity HK$'000 perannum Maturity HKS'000
B (—5ERsk Current (repayable within one
RERER) year or on demand)
FTER — EHH Bank loan — unsecured - - - 3.25% 2018 10,000
Hitat - Note:
RZT—tF+ZA=+—8  REBFEFEZ Bank loan of HK$10,000,000 as at 31 December 2017 which carried a floating
$RITE FUB 10,000,000 ST BB EE K - interest rate was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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19. EEHH 19. Deferred Tax
FRRERIBEEBEREEZESNAT ¢ The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

were as follows:

EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities
TEHAR
Withholding taxes
BT T
HK$'000
RZE—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 23,168
FAMRERRRZNIEA Charged to the income statement during the year
(Mtet10) (note 10) 8,800
30 B A B B A R BRI R S 2 Withholding tax paid on repatriation of earnings
TEHIFR from subsidiaries in Mainland China (7,217)
R-ZBE—+E+-A=1+—HE At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018
—ZE-N\¥—HA—H 24,751
FAMNKEBmK 2HRIE (K7 10) Charged to the income statement during the year
(note 10) 7,374
8 [2] AR B A 2 B B N =) 2 N BRs Bl S 5 22 Withholding tax paid on repatriation of earnings from
TEHIAR subsidiaries in Mainland China (8,084)
R-ZE—N\E+-_F=+—H At 31 December 2018 24,041
BEBEEE Deferred tax assets
BiE - et EBA
AR E) A RIFTER
prstiing) REER Bt
Temporary
difference of
provisions,
Tax credit accruals and
not utilised depreciation Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—+F—[—H At 1 January 2017 3,525 30,999 34,524
FRFA (FIBRB)IBHER 2  Credited/(charged) to the income statement
(Hiz£10) during the year (note 10) (1,434) 8948 7,514
[ 5 Exchange realignment - 2,490 2,490
RZZE—t+F+=-A=+—HK  At31December2017and
—ZT—)\#—F—H 1 January 2018 2,091 42437 445528
FREFA/IBRE) Credited/(charged) to the income statement
BaKXZBRKE10) during the year (note 10) (411) 7,985 7,574
P& i A Exchange realignment = (2,229) (2,229)
RZZE—N\F At 31 December 2018
+=BA=+—H 1,680 48,193 49,873
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EIERE (&)

EEBIEEE (22)
RIBRBRMEMERIE - RPBEAREK 2
NI B D E RN IR E B B IRAR B ZBIZ 10%
HUBTENR - WIRER=—"FEENF—HF—H
BAER TEAR -_ZEEtF+_A=1+—
HEZABF - At AEBEEERRFE
AR 2B AR R —EE/N\F—F—H
RELZAENTDIRZ S EINF 8
FERMEINEIREE 2 A A R B RS
1G4 AR ERABEZBINMRE - i AEE
MmE - EABER5%R%10% e

AR B [A) E B BROIR A AR 3 S P 75 P 1S AR AR
%O

R-B—NE+-_F=1+—8 A&£EHXK
BRESMNERBPUBNBIEERBE
41,131,00070( = & — £ F : & % 31,828,000
J0) c AR AR A AR R R FERL A o
NRZB—+F+-A=+—08 A&=ETE
SRR BA FR B A Hi ) 75 765 S 18 74 15 893,000 7T
AR —ZERFANBAREHES B A8 RRKE
FRAE - AR RAET KA BEEEERFHE -
B b M R FERRIEE R TH B EE o
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19. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 December 2018, the Company had tax losses of HK$41,131,000
(2017: HKS$31,828,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the relevant
company. As at 31 December 2017, the Group also had tax losses of
HK$893,000 arising in Mainland China for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the relevant company in one to five years. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised as it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available.



BESEZRERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

I B %5 3 R B

Notes to Financial Statements

20. ANRIE - HERHEBEKRRIE

20. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

—E-N\E ZE—+F
2018 2017
BET T ST T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
SEUNE /O Prepayments 52,353 41,377
®e Deposits 66,115 60,493
H th fE W FIE Other receivables 73,097 47,708
191,565 149,578

FTATERIA « BE REHA Current portion included in prepayments,
JE U FRIA 2z BNEAER (7 deposits and other receivables (139,210) (97,960)

JERNERER - FENFEREE Non-current portion: prepayments and

v rental deposits 52,355 51,618

e REMRBKRFREERHEERS RHE
BiEE HERBAT REREPELEE
BEREENRZAELBRARHERENZ
AREEEITREST  EEZRGAAREER
AMAIELBRARZERT A2 ZEAREE
BEBRRCHEABKXR A BHMEERE -
BR KGR B AT B R SR AR IR 5 TR
(EEEERATFELHAE -

12 I H b 8 UK IR O A5 BRI R 78 A 7R R
B BRRLAGHRANEREE  HHEE
HAYV B HE RGOSR R H R -

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and
deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the probability of
default of comparable companies with published credit ratings. In
the situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying a
loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The balances of deposits and other receivables were neither past

due nor impaired. Financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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HttEMEE

21. Other Financial Assets

—E-N\EF —E—+F
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBERFR AT EFEZSRERE Financial asset measured at fair value through
profit or loss
— 3 rEmEEm — Unlisted financial products 235,789 =
AEHEEREE Available-for-sale financial asset
— JE ETRERE M — Unlisted financial product - 48,019
235,789 48,019

HEe@mEEERZRURTEAMNEE
FERITABERTHRN T 182E408K(=
T—tF OR)NIELTAERBCRE
Mo ZECRERWRH OB ABBRERIE
ARFEARZE/EE  FEANESRE
WIBEASTMNAERFE - R — N\&F
+ZA=+—H EMeBEENRFE
ENHEABE_BINATEER BEASE
AABR@ A BT EAFE -

AEEERAMBREREREGEENILZFH

kEBBEZ TRAZTHEMEGFTZEEL
MRE 2 NFHE

2018 £ 3 ANNUAL REPORT

Other financial assets represent unlisted principal-guaranteed
financial products purchased from creditworthy banks in Mainland
China with original maturity periods ranging from 182 to 408 days
(2017:91 days). They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest. As at 31 December 2018,
the fair value measurement of the other financial assets are
categorised in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (i.e. fair value
measurement using significant observable inputs).

The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments
by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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22. BERBREEEY

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents

—E-N\EF ZE—+F

2018 2017

BET T BT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

N& RIRITES Cash and bank balances 176,879 178,308
REBARRTEHE A REZER  Non-pledged time deposits with original
=& A 2 EEHE TR maturity of less than or equal to three

months when acquired 131,959 202,881
REBARRT2HEBBE=1H2 Non-pledged time deposits with original

il iy ¢ maturity of more than three months when
acquired 92,825 260,504
401,663 641,693
LTS EETE R KRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in:

—¥-NE T t%F

2018 2017

BET T BT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

B HKS 129,338 16,530

AR RMB 272,045 624,883

ETT United States dollar 280 280

401,663 641,693

ARBTBEHEBRBEMER - AW - R
R B At 2 CHME & I (61 ) B (AERE - BEE
ENEEERE) AREELSBEREL
BINEEBZRITHAREHILSEMER

RITASRBBEEARTERNXFAEZF
BHEGE c EMEREFERNF—RETZ
BAHE  RFAKENIREHRKME R
B IR B A AR R ERELA B - RITAEER
FRANMEE RiF R HIY E RS8RV iRTT -

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
businesses.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and twelve months depending on the cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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23. Other Payables and Accrued Charges

KtaF —E-N\E —E—+t5F
2018 2017
BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000

EHaE Contract liabilities (@) 6,683
E b e BRIA Other payables (b) 72,069 69,254
fEETE A Accrued charges 325,691 305,410
st Total 404,443 374,664

BifeE - Notes:

@)

AHABERBREHARRRBITIZHRTELN
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The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group
expects that the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue within one
year when the Group transfers goods to the customer. As at 31
December 2017, the amounts of HK$3,232,000 and HKS$4,267,000
included in other payables of the Group were related to deferred
revenue arising from the loyalty point programme and receipt in
advance from customers, respectively. Such amounts were reclassified
as contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018. The details were set out in
note 2.2 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the contract liabilities included deferred
revenue arising from the loyalty point programme of the Group and
short-term advances received from customers for the sale of goods.
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received from customers for the sale
of goods.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
payment terms of one to three months.
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24. A 24. Share Capital
—E-N\EF ZE—+F
2018 2017
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
VERE Authorised:
14,800,000,000 f% (ZF —+ % : 14,800,000,000 (2017: 14,800,000,000)
14,800,000,000 f%) B AR EI (B ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
B 010 T2 BB 1,480,000 1,480,000
EEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
10,070,431,786 I (= ZF— 4 : 10,070,431,786 (2017:10,070,431,786)
10,070,431,786 %) B AR A ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
B 010 T2 Bl 1,007,043 1,007,043
RAT 2B BT T8 IRARAS AR 15 A% 15 52 B) A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary
2 EFHRMNERNZ EENEEEH 0T ¢ share capital and shares held under share award scheme during the
year is as follows:
B#1T
i BROBE BEIRE  ROEER @t
Number of Issued  Share premium
Note  sharesinissue  share capital account Total
BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BE#T: Issued:
W-Z—+4£-A-8 At 1 January 2017 10070431786 1,007,043 3,971,055 4978098
ZE-NERERE Final 2016 dividend 1 - = (60257) (60257)
R-Z—+&+-A=1+—H At31 December 2017 and
k—E-)\5-F—A 1 January 2018 10070431786 1,007,043 3910,798 4917841
—E—FRERE Final 2017 dividend 11 = = (81,797) (81,797)
RZZ-\E+-RA=+—H At 31 December 2018 10,070,431,786 1,007,043 3,829,001 4,836,044
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MR (&) 24. Share Capital (Continued)
TRIE AR 10 52 /B
STEIREZ
KtaF REE
Number of
shares held
under share BET T
Note award scheme HK$’000
RZE—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 245,095,400 (27,797)
RIE D SRR ET BB ARS Shares purchased under share
award scheme (a) 14,392,000 (2,281)
R-_ZE—+F+-_H=+—H  At31December 2017 and
k-_Z—N\E—A—H 1 January 2018 259,487,400 (30,078)
A% Bt 258 B 2 I h Vesting of shares of share award scheme (19,436,533) 2,253
RAE B 1 B2 B =t 2 BE AP (9 Shares purchased under share award
scheme (a) 73,136,000 (11,594)
RZZE—N\E+-A=+—H  At31December 2018 313,186,867 (39,419)

Kt
@ RERG IETAERSREEI47TEEE

017075(_ —+t4F : BH01587T) 2B -
B8 A 73,136,000 (% (= ZF —-+4F : 14,392,0004%)
BREESEI T2 LB - ARENES
#11,594000 (=T — L F : /%Mz,zsmoo
TT) ° ZERND B DA BEFERD

BB IR RE 2 AR 10 22 B

BEARBEREE LD EEETE - A
MR St 8B 31T 2 AR M AR 1D 22
2 7 ED B  B A TR 2R P 7 25 K2 26 ©

B

ARARR_ZEZENF= A+ - BENBRHE
AE(ZETNFRERETE]D - ZTFN
FEBREFEIENR T NEFNA-_THBEA
MERZZE—N\FHNA=ZTEBER - ERN
2T N\ FEREFSER RER=-Z
—NFERANBRBTZARGTRRABAFAS
BB E ([ = — \F R
=&l -

BR T N\FEREEICER - RAR
iElHﬂ,ﬂﬂi/ﬂﬁﬁﬁfff}\iﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂi&—
TR B - CRRBE-TTN\FE
H&%E*%‘JE?%&@*fﬂiz,ﬂ%ﬂxﬁéfﬁa " 7
BAZBBENTREE -
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25.

Note:

(a) During the year, 73,136,000 (2017: 14,392,000) ordinary shares of
HKS0.1 each were purchased by the trustee at prices of ranging from
HKS$0.147 to HKS0.170 per share (2017: HKS$0.158 per share) at a total
consideration of approximately HK$11,594,000 (2017: HK$2,281,000)
by the trustee. The shares have been classified as treasury shares.

Share options and share awards

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share award
scheme and the share options and share awards issued under the
schemes are included in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Share Options

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12 March
2008 became effective on 25 April 2008 and expired on 24 April 2018
(the "2008 Share Option Scheme”). In light of the expiry of the 2008
Share Option Scheme, a new share option scheme was adopted by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 8 June 2018 (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”).

As the 2008 Share Option Scheme has expired, no options can
further be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme as at the
date of this report. However, for the outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the
existing rights of the grantees are not affected.
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BRE(E

—E- \FRREFIASEZRAERAL
RITBRUASEEL 2 BB EHRE K
EREZER YR RBREHAKE 2K
B ERIKNBEEAR HEERE A
FEERAENRARE 2R ERALTHIAE
T ANEZEFABERAGREEREE - Mol
BEMS  AIEHEEBSAEBESFTUARSI R
BRBAREBREENZBIALR,RBE
WEBEELRZER - RAZEFEMNALER
HERARBARREEERANEE L ENE
NERHERBRERS - —F— \FHBRE
B 22REQREASEZEME2RIES - K
SEEMFEATES AKRETMER B
R REIRRUREZTSHARFRRL
HEZERAL -

—E - N\EEREFEAEBIE RZZ
—NFERNANBHEGB R N\FAALt
HE®R RAREBHR  RE-ZFT—N\FE
% 7 51 8 7] {4 3217 2 IR 1D 48 85 503,530,178
B HERZBEZARE B BEITRAL 5% -
AR 1216 A A BT &R 2 A FTER
BIE(REETE B tE R ARTTERERE)
MEBTRESTEITZRODBETEBERAE
AR Z B EITRAD 1% © AN - HRAE 12 &
AEEARN—R2FEREN — BB LIERITE
ERFESE BB AER 2 AR EARER
BERRR AN ARIEEITROHEE 01% A
BEGRARRRMONRE BB 2 W EHE)
JER 36175 5 5,000,000 7T * 44 78 5 50 A IR BR A AR
RAE EH#UE -

RIE—F— \FRBBREE ZHRK - AT
BREZHRA : (HEFETE - ()BRLE
Pt B ERAE 2B A JEmiE (RE =R EE 2
WM R RGN EMBERT - B
ARHRF I PSRN -

25, Share Options (Continued)

The purpose of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is to motivate eligible
persons to optimise their future contributions to the Group and/or
to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group, and
additionally in the case of employee, to continue to enable the
Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability
and/or to reward them for their past contributions and to provide
such individuals with a performance incentive for continued and
improved services with the Group and its subsidiaries. The
participants of the 2018 Share Option Scheme include any full-time
employee, any non-executive director of the Group and any
consultant, expert, agent or representative of the Group, and any
person approved by the Board or shareholders of the Company.

The term of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 8 June 2018 and expiring on 7 June 2028. As at the date of this
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the 2018
Share Option Scheme was 503,530,178, which represented
approximately 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
that date. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director, or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the number of shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HKS5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The period within which the options may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme, shall: (i) be
determined by the Directors; (i) commence on the expiration of 12
months (or such shorter period as may be determined by the
Directors) from the date of grant of options; and (iii) in any event not
more than 10 years from the date on which it commences.
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25, Share Options (Continued)

The offer of a grant of options must be accepted within 21 days from
the date of the grant at a consideration of HK$1.00 for the grant. The
exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares granted pursuant
to the 2018 Share Option Scheme shall not be less than the higher
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date on which the grant is made to a
participant, which must be a business day; and (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date on which the grant is made.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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25, Share Options (Continued)

The following share options under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company were outstanding during the year and as at 31 December

2018:
BRE"A EAARBER
Price of
Number of share options the Company's shares
RZE-N§ R=B-N§
-R TZA RLAH TEE RELRE  BEEW
SRERZZER - ERRE ERXN ERfIE =t-RA  (KHES) i:d:] (Hie)  (WiE7) AAl
Name or At1 Granted Lapsed Exercised At31 Dateof Exercise Atdate Immediately
category of January during during during  December grant Exercise price ofgrant  beforethe
participant 2018 the year the year the year 2018 (Note5) period (Note 6) (Note7)  grantdate
A% SRE%  SREE
HK$ HK$ HK$
pershare  pershare  pershare
Ez
Directors
iz 2464000 - - - 64000 —ETNE ZE-SFMA-THA 035 03 TR
Seto Gin Chung, John MA=TtA (Wit ) 2ZT-NEMAZTA
27 Aprl 2009 27 Apil 2010 up N/A
(Note 1) t026 April 2019
- 10070000 - - 10070000 =E-NERANE ZE-nERANR 0189 0189 0190
(Hiit2) EZTN\FrALA
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
(Note 2) to7 June 2028
LB 2464000 - - - 2064000 =FEN -f—*ﬁwﬂ TtRZ 035 035 Byl
Sz Tsai To, Robert Eﬂ ﬂ‘tﬁ(/f/f‘f) “Z-N\EmA=1~A
27 April 2009 27 April 2010 up N/A
(Note ) 026 April 2019
- 10070000 - - 10070000 =F-NERANE ZE-nE5ANA 0189 0189 019
(Ht2) EZTN\ERALA
8June 2018 8 June 2019 up
(Note2) t07 June 2028
Rz 2464000 - - - 26400 ZFENE ZZ-TEMA-TLAZ 035 03 oyl
Shek Lai Him, Abraham MAZT+AMt) —B-NERAZTAR
27 April 2009 27 April 2010 up N/A
(Note 1) 1026 April 2019
- 10070000 - - 10070000 =E-NERANE ZE-nERANR 0189 0189 0190
(Ht2) EZZC\ERRLA
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
(Note2) to7 June 2028
itE - 10070000 - - 10070000 =E-NERANE S ZE-nE5ANR 0189 0189 0190
Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph (Hiit2) EZTN\FAALA
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
(Note 2) to7 June 2028
HEHA 1527320 - - - 152730 —EEN BERUAT (Ha3) il 035 035 NER
Lam Fung Ming, Tammy mA= ﬂ‘tE (1) % EE23-0%
MAZTARBIEWZ4)
27 April 2009 Commencement subject to N/A
(Note 1) (Note 3) belowand up to
26 April 2019 (Note4)
S 4928000 - - - 498000 —EENF BEROAT (et 3) iR etk 035 035 R
Wong Kok Ying MAZTtAMI) RR ERZT-hE
MAZT~BL
27 April 2009 Commencement subject to N/A
(Note ) (Note 3) below and up
026 April 2019
72500000 - - - Ds000 —E-RE BERMUT (W) et 0127 0127 R
MANAHiE1) Ris EZ-Z-RF
MANB L
9 April 2015 Commencement subject o N/A
(Note 1) (Note 9) below and up
t08 April 2025
86347320 40,280,000 - - 126627320
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25, Share Options (Continued)

EREgA ADARGBER
Price of
Number of share options the Company's shares
RZZ-N§ RZB-N\§
- t2A BHEH E RRHEH  BERE
SEENZARR -8B FARE  EmiN FmAR =t-B  (WdEs) %8 (Hite)  (W&E7) A&
Name or At1 Granted Lapsed Exercised At31  Dateof Exercise Atdate Immediately
category of January during during during  December grant Exercise price ofgrant  before the
participant 2018 the year the year theyear 2018 (Note5) period (Note6) (Note7)  grantdate
EREY  BREE  SREk
HK$ HK$ HK$
pershare  pershare pershare
B8t 227500000 - - - w5000 ZE-RfF BERIAT (Hi29) ittt 0127 0127 MER
Employees in aggregate mANB Wit Ff BE-SCRF
ANRLE
9 April 2015 Commencement subject to N/A
(Note ) (Note 9) below and up
108 April 2025
72500000 - - - 000 ZE—HEAAZTZA RN T FilTA 01988 0197 0185
(it1) Rif EZ-ECtE
AAZT=RLE
22 June 2017 Commencement subject to
(Note 1) (Note 9) below and up to
21 June 2027
- 4323300 - - 4333000 ZE-N\FERANE BERAT (MY iR 0189 0189 0190
(Hit2) Ris E2-EC)\E
ARtAL
8June 2018 Commencement subject to
(Note ) (Note 9) below and up
107 June 2028
300000000 463,233,000 = = 763,233,000
HES(Hits) 12320000 - - - 3000 ZTERE “E-TEMA-TLHE 035 035 &R
ExDirectors (Noted) MAZTtAMt) —F-NFMAZTAA
27 April 2009 27 April 2010 up N/A
(Note ) t0 26 April 2019
398667320 503513,000 = - 902180320
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KREB2REERRBABZBERNR =
SERBE_ZFT/N\FERETERMN2EE
BREZGEFE 2D i%ﬁﬁﬂﬂiézg(
BAKE BB 2 T HIR0RA 1A B

MBERZLETR=_ZE—=F A=+ N\BHAE
BIENTESREBE-_STNFERET
2 EEeREECEBREREZITEBRD
B BEE-ZT-NAFHNA=-t+BAL
MELERTMASBZEBRESER
—E—=FEXNASFNBRRK -

B BBAAR A RRETEHRG
ALk e

BREZITEER THAE -

ARRBBA AL B ER AN L B H
MBS B B MRR PG Z IR U (B

EHELEER_ZT—=Z=FRA=1+H
BEFRTESEERB EER
—E—RNFZA-_t+hHHEREE=TSEER
il - EEHLETR -_E—+F A -HRE
BUIEMITES - RAKFEER T —LF
NAZTHABAREBILIERNITES - RIE
—EE N\FHERETE SRR TZREE
SoE s KA mtpiE s EEAE L RIRKE
5 A 2 2,464,000 % + 4,928,000 /% 2,464,000 A%
T 2464000 R BERR AR B R - BEE1TFEH
HERALE °

ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%iﬂ%ﬂmﬁ%/,\%%at | EEg
TRBREZEXEZEMNE EFTLEERSR
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TERAFIA B E -

25, Share Options (Continued)

Notes:

)

The relevant share options were granted under the 2008 Share Option
Scheme.

The relevant share options were granted under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

Having considered the participants’ achievement of performance
targets, the Board had notified the participants the details of vesting
of share options including the number of share options being vested
and the date of commencement of the exercise period of the vested
share options in accordance with the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

Upon re-designation of Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy as a
non-executive Director on 28 June 2013 and pursuant to the 2008
Share Option Scheme, the Board endorsed that the exercise period of
her vested share options remained effective up to 26 April 2019 and
all unvested share options previously granted were lapsed on 28 June
2013.

The vesting periods of the share options run from the date of grant to
the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustments.

The price of the Company's shares at the date of grant is the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant.

Mr. Lee Pak Wing resigned as a non-executive Director on 20 May
2013 and Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter retired from the position as the
chairman of the Board on 25 March 2016. Dr. Wong Yu Hong, Philip
retired as an independent non-executive Director on 2 June 2017. Mr.
Cheung Wing Yui, Edward resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 25 August 2017. In accordance with the 2008 Share
Option Scheme, share options of 2,464,000, 4,928,000, 2,464,000 and
2,464,000 granted to Mr. Lee Pak Wing, Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter, Dr.
Wong Yu Hong, Philip and Mr. Cheung Wing Yui, Edward, respectively,
remain effective until the end of the exercise period.

The vesting of share options are subject to the participants’
achievement of performance targets to be set by the Board from time
to time. The Board will notify the participants, after considering the
participants’ performance and achievement of the pre-set targets, the
details of the vesting of share options, including the number of share
options to be vested and the date of commencement of the exercise
period of the vested share options in accordance with the share
option schemes.
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25, Share Options (Continued)

The fair value of the share options was HK$42,447,000 (2017:
HK$33,694,000) which was estimated using a binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The Company recognised a share option
expense of HK$2,174,000 (2017: HKS5,658,000) during the year.

The fair value of share options was estimated using the following
assumptions:

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

AR S (%) Dividend yield (%) 1.97-5.36 197-2.86
TEHA R 1R (%) Expected volatility (%) 34.17-51.29 34.17-56.03
[ 525 @ (%) Historical volatility (%) 34.17-51.29 34.17-56.03
47 [ 2 ) 2 (%) Risk free interest rate (%) 1.43-2.43 143-2.26
ITERES —F= Exercise Multiple — Director 2.80 2.80
TERH—EE Exercise Multiple — Employee 2.20 2.20

R R M 0 TR 4F B SR R R T B B AE MO 7T 08
B o

T8 H R 1 F2 B JEF 2 U7 B AJ e BR R 2R 25 O R
R MALHRRERNER -

SAEATERBEINIALMBREZSE -
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The expected life of the share options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.
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25.

26.

Share Options (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 902,180,230 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 902,180,230
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$90,128,000 and share premium of HK$66,617,000 (before issue
expenses).

Save for the grant of share options on 8 June 2018 and 22 June 2017,
no options were granted or exercised during the current and last
years.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 902,180,230 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 9.0% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

Share Award Scheme

On 20 March 2015, the Board of the Company adopted a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a means to recognise
the contribution of and provide incentives for the key management
personnel, employed experts and core employees of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 15
years from 20 March 2015 (the “Adoption Date"). The shares to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”) will
either be acquired by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Trustee”) from the open market or be new shares issued and
allotted to the Trustee under general mandates granted by
shareholders at the general meetings of the Company from time to
time, both of which will be funded from cash contributed by the
Group. The Trustee will hold the Award Shares in trust for the
awardees until such shares are vested with the awardees in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme. The
Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any shares
held under the Trust.

The Board shall not make any further award of shares which will
result in the aggregate number of shares awarded by the Board
throughout the duration of the scheme to exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company from time to time and shall
not award more than 1% of the total number of issued shares to any
selected participant from time to time.
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26. BRPRBETEI(E) 26. Share Award Scheme (Continued)
EEALTIERRDAGZERESE2 2 The vesting of shares awarded to the awardees is subject to
MEEEZIGGE REEe2ENSETE conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the Board in its

SREREREE o sole discretion.
E/\@i_ = —N\F+= ﬂ +—HIEEE - During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board resolved to
EreminE TERSEE (WIIEAQAE grant share awards in respect of 38,699,120 (2017: 29,634,959) shares
= FETHABSTERE - INFE LA F to certain selected participants who are not a director, chief
MALTHBEA(EER LHHRAD)RTEH executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor an
38,699,120 % (=& — 44 : 29,634,959 %) Az 15 associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any of them.
IR B2 o
i 2 B iR AR R Al s H M E ik The shares granted will be vested in the respective proportions and
REHGERNAERNSENLAINSEEAE on the dates as set out in the relevant letters of grant issued by the
HGEE CHEBROBSETEEREHEE Company. Vested shares will be transferred to the selected
THEEZ ,\% EREAXSERRBAYER participants at no cost, save that transaction fees and expenses will
TERREEPEGEANBH I - be payable by the selected participants as transferees.
AR 42 EE B MBI EAAFENT ¢ Movements in the number of share awards and their average fair

value per share were as follows:

BRFHAIVE RORBEE

Average
fair value Number of
per share  shares awards
i
HKS$
RZZE—+F—HA—BJRTTE  Outstanding at 1January 2017 0.10 62,054,078
BT Awarded 0.20 29,634,959
RZZE—+F+=-A=+—HK&  Outstanding at 31 December 2017 and
s — N\F— A —B1ARITE 1 January 2018 0.13 91,689,037
BT Awarded 0.19 38,699,120
DB RETTE Vested and exercised 0.10 (19,436,533)
R-BE-NE+=-A=+—H Outstanding at 31 December 2018
MARTTEE 0.16 110,951,624
HE T \FhR-_ZE—+tF+=-A=1+— The fair value of the share awards granted during the years ended 31
H JJ:EE PR H fo’ﬁ 2R < A ETEA December 2018 and 2017 was estimated by using the fair value (i.e.
AABIRRMAR L BHRKTE 2 A FE A market value) of the Company's share closing price at the date of
m{E) &t grant.
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27.

28.

29‘

(N
ARBEEAFERBEEEZ HELERY
FHRGAERBDEN2E -

REHEOZH
AEBRBEERORHRESTES  H
AEMEREE - RENEABEER—
E+RERE -

RBELE - AEERE A HEEEED
MAREZN 2 e HELBEWT :

27.

28.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Operating Lease Commitments

The Group leases certain of its shops, office premises and
warehouses under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to fifteen years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—E-N\E ZE—+F
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
—F R Within one year 270,169 241,692
F_EEERAF(BIEEREME)  Inthe second tofifth years, inclusive 579,385 746,773
jidsh o hakad Beyond five years 225,986 214,927
1,075,540 1,203,392

AN BEFIERZKERAORS - DIRETE In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain shops are based on

MEHRBEEE BRI MG RE
BAERHEREECXAEEMER 28D
FIFE - MRNERERMAFTILFEH 2 RK
HESE BRI EFARBIAHEME
STARBEHEEAIE -

the higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent based on sales of
these shops pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the
respective rental agreements. As the future sales of these shops could
not be accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent has not
been included above and only minimum lease commitments have
been included in the above table.

B ARAEIE 29. Capital Commitments
RERERAR  REB 2 EARRASAEQRDT ¢ At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments for capital expenditure:
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEIAEREHR : Contracted, but not provided for:
ME - BWENERE Property, plant and equipment 2,500 2,885
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30. FEHERERMT 30. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows
METBMELEZEEED Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
RITE
Bank loan
BT
HK$'000
RZE—+5—H—H At 1 January 2017 10,000
FEZ Interest expense 134
WHBAKRESEKESREZCDMNTE Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (134)
R-ZZE—+FE+-_A=1+—HK At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018
—ZE-N\E—H—H 10,000
FMEZH Interest expense 52
WHBAKEERIREREZENFE Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (52)
B Repayment (10,000)
RZE—N\F+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2018 =
31. BEEALRS 31. Related Party Transactions
BRI HmAREMITNEEZABEALR In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed
SGRERIN REBRERNE NI REEE elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the following
BABEZHZME - compensation to key management personnel during the year:
—E-N\E —EFE—tF
2018 2017
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EHEERA Short-term employee benefits 7,112 7,053
IREE1Z 1T Post-employment benefits 152 152
ARG R4 E 7 VARG (D 2 A5F Equity-settled share-based payments (316) 1,323
MEBEBAEXN 2S5  Total compensation paid to key management
personnel 6,948 8,528
BERAEEME 2 #E— SHBEH RIS HRERM Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the
FE8 e financial statements.
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32. REFIEATNEMTR

RBEPRRZ BB TANREENT

32. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

—B-N\E 2018
SREE Financial assets
RS R A ERBR
JliRz  BAFEAR
SRMEE ZEMEE st
Financial assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
BT T BETT BT I
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEUR AR TH Accounts receivable 19,945 - 19,945
FTATBNFIE « e R HAM Financial assets included
FEWIRIE Y ©BEE in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables 89,297 - 89,297
EthemEE Other financial assets - 235,789 235,789
HeNBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 401,663 - 401,663
510,905 235,789 746,694
=N Financial liabilities
REBHER A
JiIfRzemAasE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BET T
HK$’000
FESBRIE Accounts payable 128,255
STAEMERRIENETERZ Financial liabilities included in other
SHAaE payables and accrued charges 183,330
311,585
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32. REFEINEMTA(E)

32. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)

—T—tF 2017
SR EE Financial assets
BR R AT
JE U AR TE SREE BT
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
BETIT BEETIT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FE W BRTE Accounts receivable 17,769 - 17,769
STABNFIE - e Kk Financial assets included
Hith iR 2 in prepayments, deposits
SREE and other receivables 76,331 = 76,331
HEih o piE Other financial asset = 48019 48,019
Re MRSEED Cash and cash equivalents 641,693 = 641,693
735,793 48,019 783,812
CA =N Financial liabilities
R SH A AR
Ul = Y=
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BT T
HKS'000
FERERIE Accounts payable 153,624
STAEMEAIRIE N ESTE R 2 Financial liabilities included in other
SRIBE payables and accrued charges 165,630
sTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank loan 10,000
329,254
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=R BR

AEEZIEZ2eRTABEAERITERNU
RRSREHRER ZEERTAZTER
MESRECRNAREZEE ~A5EE
ERHEMMeRMEERAGE  PIWAERKRER
LEMERKES ZRYSRE - EibEUIRE -
Ht @@ EE - BNRIENREAMENRIE
KRERTEM -

ERECHERE MESEEY  BERE -
ENRIE  stATRNRE Ze REMER
FREZERMEE - %’Jr)\ﬁi\ﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁfgﬁ
ERzERmARE L/(&qu BERZAFE -
RSHERAEEES

.K%.é?ﬁﬂl,ﬁ\ﬁﬁgﬁizrt w F E A&
- HNEE R B {:fﬁ CRBE SRR
&?ﬁuufﬁﬂﬂ b @ %Agfﬁﬁ%’;*ﬁ@ﬁl
TR R BR - WREAEAT o

A R E R
K%lﬁ%TZﬁi%f'Jf“‘“Ebﬂﬁ IE%E%A
ZKE@BZ/%@J%U‘T’& ZIRITER - AEE
P B B =K [ fix I@#?ﬁ%ﬁj%ﬁéhﬁﬂﬁ
ﬁfﬁMéJﬂlE’H%ﬁﬁ'}ﬂTﬂﬁm °

SN ELBR
AEBEIZREERPEARGLEE AKX
HEE BERIHEBUBE  ARKER
ETTEHE -

EEEAEEEASEZIMNERM - I HR
FEREEREAIINE RABETEF -

BN EXTTHE - ANEE I E LR
SNEERIER - AR ARMBERKBPTEL
2 BE 5 B R BRI 7 SR [ i e BR TR 1202 7
(EERBRT) °

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise an interest-
bearing bank loan, and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable, other receivables, other
financial assets, accounts payable, and other payables and accrued
charges, which arise directly from its investment and operations.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accrued charges, and an
interest-bearing bank loan approximate to their carrying amounts.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
commodity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers taking measures to reduce significant interest rate
exposure, if necessary.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
its monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or United States
dollars.

The management monitors the Group's foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
when the need arises.

Given that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, the Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
on it. The translation differences arising from fluctuation in the
exchange rate of Renminbi are reflected in the Group's equity and
profit after tax, where appropriate.
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's

profit after tax.
ARBER AEERBZER
A CFER) Rig, CR)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) inthe Group's
inRMBrate profit after tax
BT T
% HK$’000
—E-)N\F 2018
fis S s AR B2 (B If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB 5 4,617
B AREHE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB (5) 4,617)
—E—+F 2017
i S AR B2 (A If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB 5 7,155
i S AR EFE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB (5) (7,155)
8RR Credit risk

REAKBZRE  MAFEEGERASZ
EFOREXEEEZ  WIN ARERE
ERBUREESR  ARERAAEE - K
SEEME R EEREAIEKRYE -

R-FE-NFt+_A=1T—HZRFEEMA
B R F LSBT
TRETERASEEERRIMEREERR
EaFERR(E2UaBERRIKE @ FRIE
ARANETBERARE HMEFSEMLE
FORER—_ZF-—N\F+_A=1t—BZ2FK
EEROB - MER SR ATREEZIRE
e -
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Itis the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. With such
policies in place, the Group has been able to maintain its bad debts
at a reasonable level.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is
mainly based on past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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33. BIKEKREEEEREE () 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
EERE (&) Credit risk (Continued)
128 A
FaH
EEF#E 2HEREEEE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
EIEE  FoE  FE3IMER  BLERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

BETIT AETI BETT BE¥TT ARTT
HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

e Uk BR T8 * Accounts receivable* = = - 19,945 19,945
stAFEMFIE - HEf  Financial assets included
FEURERIB R M EE  in prepayments, other

ZEMEE receivables and other assets

— — Normal 89,297 - - - 89,297
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents

— AR EHEE — Not yet past due 401,663 - - - 401,663

490,960 - - 19,945 510,905
* AEEERABLREREZ EIARIE o For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment
R-CE—+F+-_A=+—AzR5E=EA Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017
FEERBERERERL T HRIRWER Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty
Eo-HRAEEZEREEEZDHRAE and by geographical region. There are no significant concentrations
BE BMASERAF N FECERKRBEZES of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s
HRZIEMR ° accounts receivable are widely diversified to a large number of
customers.

BEAEEEWRBEAECEERR ZE Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
— P EEEIE R BEmERWE 16#E - risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed in note 16 to the

financial statements.
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EERARMEEHEEMEMAZ 2 ZE - 7R
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FE - BE_ZT-N\FERZZE—+F+=A
=+ HIEEER AEBEWEZEHE
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EXEE

AEEHEAER B2 ERRER
SEAENFELEERREZEARL X
U HEEBERLBERSRRER -

AEEEEHEARBL NEEBEREZ(C

ATE - BHFHRFBEALRE - A5E

AEEERHBERARRIKMN ZERE  MERERE

BARBITHRND BE_ZT-/\FE_F

—tHF+-_A=+t—"BLFER ERER
RE  BRIEFLENLE
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans to meet its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was less than one year.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the Group's
products include beef, chicken meat and pork. The Group is exposed
to fluctuations in the prices of these raw materials which are subject
to global as well as regional supply and demand and other factors.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely affect the
Group's financial performance. The Group did not enter into any
commodity derivative instruments to hedge the potential
commodity price changes during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.
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33. iIXEMREEEEREE (&) 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
BEXREE (1) Capital management (Continued)
AEBFEABEL R (BIF BRITEZHEER The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is expressed
AARIREFEABLER ZLER)ERE as a percentage of interest-bearing bank loan over equity
Ko NERERKL > BELENT attributable to equity holders of the Company. The gearing ratios as

at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

—E-N\EF ZE—+F

2018 2017

BET T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

T EIRITER Interest-bearing bank loan - 10,000
RAFIRERE ABEER Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company 665,015 653,810

BELE Gearing ratio - 1.5%
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34. AR T BT E

FRARBARNBERRZMBRARR ZEH

34. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

HH|T - Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-N\F —EF—tF
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FkRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
RBRARIZKE Investments in subsidiaries 3,446,843 3,446,843
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
il S NS B Due from subsidiaries - 13,746
TE I RI8 & E At fE U AR TR Prepayments and other receivables 1,090 1,047
ReMRSEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 562 10,928
BB EEE Total current assets 1,652 25,721
nEBE CURRENT LIABILITIES
E A e RRIB R IERT B A Other payables and accrued charges 4,244 4,406
FEASTHT B A Bl R E Due to subsidiaries 61,443 =
FTRRITER Interest-bearing bank loan - 10,000
BB B Total current liabilities 65,687 14,406
RE ﬁé/(ﬁ{ﬁ) FEE NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (64,035) 11,315
BEE NET ASSETS 3,382,808 3,458,158
s EQUITY
B2 TR AN Issued share capital 1,007,043 1,007,043
&t (Hfat) Reserves (note) 2,375,765 2,451,115
HER Total equity 3,382,808 3,458,158
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34. KD EIBIERRE (B)

34. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)
Htat - Note:
RABlEEIBENT A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
VS GENES
19 % B AR G BB Z5HE1E “eEt
Share  Share-based
premium payment  Contributed Accumulated
account reserve surplus losses Total
BET T BT T BT T BB T T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
RZZE—tF—HA—H At 1 January 2017 3,971,055 12,668 16,674 (1,501,267) 2,499,130
AR A R 2 E W Profit and total comprehensive
pak] income for the year - - - 1,782 1,782
ARG 4 2 DARR 1 Equity-settled share-based
= fF payments - 10,460 - - 10,460
T RFEREARKRE Final 2016 dividend (note 11)
(Bfain) (60,257) = = = (60,257)
R-ZE—+F At 31 December 2017 and
+—A=+—HRK 1 January 2018
- )\F—-H—H 3,910,798 23,128 16,674 (1,499,485) 2,451,115
RERF R 2 EWE Profit and total comprehensive
4858 income for the year - - - 545 545
SEB AN 2EEh st 2] 2 M{H  Vesting of shares of share award
scheme - (1,951) - (302) (2,253)
VARG AE 45 5 2 LARRAD Equity-settled share-based
A payments - 8,155 - = 8,155
—E—LFEREKRE Final 2017 dividend (note 11)
(MfaE11) (81,797) - = = (81,797)
R-ZZE—)\F At 31 December 2018
+—-—A=+—H 3,829,001 29,332 16,674 (1,499,242) 2,375,765

ARBZHABRTIERIFEH R - AE
BERREEBRARAEEEGRARIE
AR RRARARZ2EWMB AR BEEA
RAEREEEBI0OT 2N 2 EERER
TR\ FEA-+HB(AEAZERBEH)
BREARREMBRARZEGARRERZE
B BHEFRENAGEARBMA-_TT)N
F=—RATmAZEFEXHFEA -

UBM MR EEEREREBERRITEZE
Pk Ko B0 B2 2 A B - S R H R
M 24 BRABRD XN ZR B ZEFTHK
B B B 0 AR B R AR S A A SR B T
B S B 2 AN -+ S A B R A A s AR A7) 2R R
B AR O W E R =R E A

The Company's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company allotted under a reorganisation whereby Hop Hing
Holdings Limited (‘HHHL"), the then ultimate holding company of
the Group, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the consolidated shareholders’ equity of HHHL and its subsidiaries as
at 25 April 2008, the date on which this reorganisation became
effective. Details of this reorganisation were set out in HHHL's
scheme document dated 14 March 2008.

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share
options and share award granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to share capital when the related options or
share award are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options or share award expire or be forfeited.
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34. AR FIBEMRRE (E)

35.

168

BERSHEEAGE W-_Z—\F+=A
=+—HASRTFARRREZ FEEFEL
7 #02346433000C( = FE — L F: B K
2,427,987,0007C ) * MEfR A B pE#E 5 IR AR B B
H%g - AR AEERBEEBHBESE
HZ BT - B 2ETHIK °

TEMEARFE
ARTEBHBARZ FEMT :

34.

35.

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the net
amount of reserves distributable to shareholders of the Company as at
31 December 2018 was HK$2,346,433,000 (2017: HKS$2,427,987,000),
the distribution of which is subject to the condition that, immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

gL BERTRA/ NGl E
L TR EE BRBRAEE RERAL FEEE
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration issued/fully attributable to
Name and operations paid share capital the Company  Principal activities
REEREEAERER AR REBRRAREE 46509 7T 100 REZK
Hop Hing Fast Food Group British Virgin Islands US$46,509 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited
EREIEREXERAR" HEEARARE HE N AR 20000007 100 BEEK
Beijing Nanhe Hua Nong Agricultural People’s Republic of RMB2,000,000 100 Agricultural operation
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
IREFRREBRAR* PEARAME HEAM AR 187700007T 100 HEREE
Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food People’s Republic of RMB18,770,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
ARIREFRRA BB BT 100 REERRS
Champ Base Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
AEREREARAA" i ARARE RN 800,000 100 BEREE
Dalian Hexing Fast Food People’s Republic of US$800,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
RRESEERERBERAA R AREME/ R E A AR 20000007 100 HEREE
Harbin Hop Hing Catering People’s Republic of RMB2,000,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Management Limited* China/Mainland China
BHARAH BE 71,000,000 7 100 REER
Hawick Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
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35. TEMBRARFE(E)

cial Statements

35. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

RABEEWBRRZEFBLOT : (&) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
B3 BITRE NGl g
=L BN EE Sk BRRAEE REEAL TEER
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration issued/fully attributable to
Name and operations paid share capital the Company  Principal activities
REREREILHREFRAF REERRES ES 100 REEERS
Hop Hing Fast Food China North British Virgin Islands USS1 100 Provision of management services
Investment Company Limited
REREARR BE 75 7,000,000 7 100 PREEERE
Hop Hing Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 Provision of management services
RERFBERAR BE BRI 100 fREERRE
Hop Hing Franchise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Provision of management services
REREREERR BE BT 100 REEERS
Hop Hing QSR Investmems Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Provision of management services
WA S B B R E R REARAME HE N AR 500,0007T 100 HEREE
BRAR*
HuHeHaoTe Hop Hing Catering People’s Republic of China/ RMB500,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Management Company Limited* Mainland China
BEQEREARLD REARLRNE AR 749,100,000 70 100 EEREE
Liaoning Hop Hing Fast Food People’s Republic of China/ HK$9,100,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Company Limited* Mainland China
REAEAREHEEERD hEARAME,/ HEAM AR 5000007 100 BWEER LIRS ERE
Tianjin Hejia Xingtai Catering People’s Republic of China/ RMB500,000 100 Investment holding and provision

Management Company Limited*

* REBEHEDEFIEMZ N BE R *

BReBmEREEZERBRIFIN -
AHmARAEERSA - EA%Z:KE
Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE &R
E@t B AR PERER D L EE S -

IE‘&I‘HJ%

EERR LRAIIZARRMBAREAR
SEAEBFEE
n o MESEMmHB AR 2 F1E8

Ef“%ifi’]ﬁék?/a
ZEZEH
2EHE I‘EJE/\\\ILE @

Mainland China

=]

of management services

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law

Except for Hop Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited, all the above
principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. There was
no change in the percentage of equity attributable to the Company
for the above subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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36. I HKTZUE 36. Approval of the Financial Statements
AOBEREREAEETEGR_ZT—NLF=A The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
ZHN\BREREETE - the board of directors on 28 March 2019.
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BETRREBMBRERE 2 ANEB D TR EE AN ARE A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
BEEENEBEHEESMNAT - Group for the last five financial years is set out below.

BEt-A=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

“E-\E —T—+fF -—T-RFE —T-HF _—T-NF

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
BETT BETT  AMTT  B%Tr A%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ RESULTS
E 2] Turnover 2,373,954 2218323 2,091,313 2,050,053 2,157,873
e Profit from operating activities 180,910 241540 177,448 94,099 48,284
BAKA Finance costs (736) (942) (837) (1507) (1388)
R A R A Profit before tax 180,174 240,598 176,611 92,592 46,896
FriEHRY Income tax expense (57,568) (73,246) (51,996) (26,804) (11,531)
KEHF Profit for the year 122,606 167,352 124615 65,788 35,365
JE{f : Attributable to:
ANBRESE A Equity holders of the Company 122,606 167,352 124,615 65,788 35,365
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R+=A=t+—H
As at 31 December
“E-\E —E—tf ZT-RF —T-nF —T-QEF

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
BETR BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ME - BENRE Property, plant and equipment 208,449 213476 188907 212,409 250,870
RAEECEZIRE Investment in a joint venture 11,185 - - - -
ELETHIBEE Deferred tax assets 49,873 44528 34524 26,789 21,263
BAFEREEERS Prepayment and rental deposits 52,355 51618 47016 45,945 44,264
MENEE Current assets 906,693 917,084 710,763 548103 539,948
EEHE TOTAL ASSETS 1,228,555 1,226,706 981,210 833,246 856,345
= LIABILITIES
mEaE Current liabilities 539,499 548145 45445 368,379 422,825
EERIEA R Deferred tax liabilities 24,041 24751 23,168 16433 12,995
BELE TOTAL LIABILITIES 563,540 572896 477413 385312 435820
EEE NET ASSETS 665,015 6533810 503,797 447934 420,525
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